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During a year in whach the world
has experienced swgnaficant economac
and political turbulence, Clarks has
contrnued to make good progress.

Profits have risen to £115 mallion,
reflecting the strength and balance of
our geographic spread, the power of our
brand and the commitment of our people.

Across the world, our fourteen thousand
employees have worked tvrelessly to
launch new products, new marketing
campargns, new channels and new
markets, whalst also commatiing
themselves to ssgmficant investment
projects for our future

This report reviews our activities during
the year, and the results whach the Clarks
team has delivered




annual
report and
financial
statements

04 Results at a Glance
05 Summary of Trading Results

REVIEW OF ACTIVITIES

08 Chairman’s Statement
10 Chief kxecutive’s Report
16 Finanual Review

CORPORATE I"OLICIES
22 Corporate Governance
25 Health and Safety Summary
26 Corporate Social Responsibility Summary
32 Remuneration Report

TIHE BOARD
38 Board of Directors
40 Dhrectors’ Repoit
42 Statement of Duectors’ Responsibilities
43 Independent Auditor’s Report

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46 Group Profit and Loss Account

47 Balance Sheets

48 Group Cash Flow Statement

48 Reconcihation of Net Cash Flow to
Movement 1in Net Borrowings

49 Group Statement of Total Recognised
Gains and Losses

49 Reconciliation of Movements in Equity
Shareholders’ Funds

49 Croup Note of Historical Cost
Profits and Losscs

50 Accounting Policies

52 Notes to the Financial Statements

70 C&] Clark Limited and Subsidiaries

7 Group Financial Record

72 Facts at your Fingertips




0f

RESULTS AT A GLLANCE

2012 2011

Toral Group turnover

£1,398.1m  £1,281 3m

Operating profit* £115.8m £110 9m

Basic earning per ordmary share** 130.5p 129 6p

Dividends per ordinary share — interim 31st January 2012 10.0p 10 Op
— final 31st January 2012 {payable Apnl 2012) 27.5p 26 5p

Net {borrowings)/.ush (£9 S5m) £18 6m

Return on capital employed* 22.3% 252%

¥ Before eaceptional tems

** After excepisonal ttems

Basic earmings per ordmary share Group turnover from continmng

after exceptional items (pence) operations (£m)

2008 847 ‘ 2008 1,035 6 (

2009 102 6 0 2009 1,122 0 '

2010 1016 . 2010 1,173 5 T

2011 1296 { . 2011 1,281 3 '

2012 130.5 ] 2012 1,398 1 L — ]

Turnover from the Flefanten group and Ravel have been eacluded from all years

Pre-tax profits after
exceptional 1tems (£m)

Return on capital employed before
exceplional items (%)

2008 751 L .. . 2008 237 |
2009 86 8 l __ 2009 210 o
2010 851 {_ T 7 2010 276 L.}
2011 1087 [ - o 2011 252 r
2012 106.1 I 2012 22.3

Group turnover from conlinuing
operations by trading division (%)

Total footwear profits (%)

Clarks International 614 ]

Clarks Companies

Clarks International 62 5 |
North America 375 N

Clarks Compames

North Amenca 415 [

Croup footwear items 00

Group footwear items  "(29) 11




SUMMARY OF TRADING RESULTS

Summary of trading results for the year ended 31st January 2012

Operating Operating
profet be fure profit befare
exceplional exccplional Capatal Capnal
Tarnover Turnover Mems items employed employed
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Clarks International 873.6 8060 797 9230 329.5 2071
Clarks Companies North America 524.5 475 3 52.5 549 188.7 142 2
Group footwear items - - 37 (18 6) - -
Total footwear 1,398.1 1,281 3 126.5 1293 518.2 4393
Non-footwear 1tems - - (10.7) (18 4) - -
Group Turnover 1,398.1 1,281 3 115.8 1109 518.2 439 3
Non footwear wtems comprite long-term tncentrre scheme charges of £6 3m (2017 - £16 5m), holding company activy and central peasion costs
Key profits drivers of divisional trading resulis
Clarks
International
im
January 2011 divisianal profit 93.0 |
Increase in pairage volume sold 17 L
Increase 1n average selling price 744 i
Increase in other product costs (79 5) I
Increase 1n retail overheads (19) ]
Increase 1n brand marketing investment 30) |
Increase 1n other overheads (70) [
January 2012 divisional profit 7.7 I
Clarks
Companes
North America
£m
January 2011 divistonal profit 54.9 IR
Increase 1n pairage volume sold 381 [
Increase 1n average selling price 263 C
Increase 1n other product costs {42 6) ]
Increase in retail overheads (82}
Increase 1n brand marketing investment {75) ]
Increase 1n other overheads {8 5) .
January 2012 divisional profit 52.5 I
reofit IR Pomtive varuonees [ ) Megatne varances [l 00 200 400 600 800 W00 1200 1400 180 0

Profit £m
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

The Company contimues to make strong
progress wn ats transformation to a truly
global buswness with the goal of makwng
Clarks the leading everyday global
Jootwear brand. The growth w turnover
over the past five year s of 35%, wm pre-taa,
profits of over 409 and 1 earnmmgs per
share of over 50% underline the wnherent
strength wn your business and fully
vilidate the confidence the Boaird have
w amplementing the strategy

| am pleased to report that the year ended January 2012 has
been another strong year for the Company Total sales grew
9 1% 10 £1 4bn whulst operating profits before exceptional
charges rose by 4 4% to a new recotd level of £115 8m

Exceplional profits from property disposals were £0 2m
compared o £5 1m last year and this together with a small
inerease 1n nterest costs resulted in pre-tax profits of £106 1m
compared to £108 7m 1n the previous year

Earnings per share ended the year at 130 5 pence per share,
an mcrease of 0 7%

Our balance sheet and cash flow remain strong with year

end net debt of £9 5m and geanng of 2 2% In the Chief
Executive’s report Melissa discusses the cost pressures that
have led to a 20% increase in product costs and this together
with a 5 9% increase 1n paurs sold has led to a 17 9% ncrease




in capital employed The Coampany 1s undertaking sigmficant
mvestments in a new distribution centre and new systems
platform in North America These investments are crinical to
our long-term strategy and will be funded within our current
facihities and cash flow hut 1n the short-term sharcholders
should expect to see an increase in year end debt and gearing

Although trading conditions were challenging in 2011 and

we remain cautious on the outlook for 2012, your Company
has continued to demonstrate 1ts long-term confidence with
significant investment for the future Global marketing spend
has increased, we continue to invest 1n our global organisation
and logistics capability and 1n new stores and modermsations

There were no changes to the Board of Directors during the
year but | am delighted to announce that Stella David joined
the Board on 1st March 2012 as a Non-Executive Director
Stells 15 CEQ of William Grant and Sons, one of the largest
distillers 1n Scotland, a £1 Obn business marketing global
brands throughout the world Prior to joining the family owned
William Grant, Stella built her career at Bacardi Lid, another
family owned business where, amongst other roles she was
Globhal Chief Marketing Officer

Stella brings proven expernience 1n building and marketing
brands in an international environment and we look forward
to welcoming her to the Board

In 2009 the Board, with agreement of the Family Shareholder
Council, approved a three year cycle of share buy backs
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Buy backs were carned out in 2009 and 2010 Last year the
number of purchasers exceeded the number of sellers at each
share market and there was no buy back Approval for a share
buy back programme will be sought at the appropriate Annual
General Meeting

In aceordance with the Articles, share valuations are prepared
twice a year by an independent firm of chartered accountants

In May 2011, 223,501 shares were offered for sale at £7 90,
all 223,501 shares were sold

In October 2011, 68,091 shares were offered for sale a1 £7 90,
all 68,091 shares were sold

On 30th June 2011 88,248 shares were appropnated for
participants 1n the C&J Clark Limited All Employee Share
Incentive Plan

The final dividend due for payment 1in April 2012 has been sel
by the Board at 27 5 pence per share Together with the interim
payment of 10 0 pence per share, this will make a combined
annual dividend of 37 5 pence per share This represents

a 2 7% ncrease on last year Al this level, the dividend 15
covered 3 5 times

PETER DAVIES
Chairman

23rd March 2012
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT

North America has emerged wath
wnereasing confidence from the
recession and our fledglmg operations
wm Asra, Indrva and the Middle FEast all

prospered wn a clvmate of business growth.

OVERVIEW

In my previous reports to shareholders 1 have indicated that a
toxic mixture of adverse global economic conditions and high
inflation 1n imported product costs from the Far East had the
potential to senously impede the Group’s progress In truth our
experience of trading conditions 1n our key markets has been
mixed Whilst the UK has remained extremely chalienging
throughout and European markets became ever more clearly
mnfluenced by the wider concerns over the sovereign debt erisis
as the year progressed, North America has emerged with
mereasing confidence from the recession and our fledghng
operations it Asia, India and the Middle East all prospered

1n a climate of business growth The extent and impact of
product cost inflation was broadly in line with our expectations
Driven by sharply higher labour and material costs from our
Chinese and Vietnamese sources together with the trend of
increased Dollar strength against the Pound, hike-for-hike

costs rose by around 23% 1n Clarks International and by

15% mn Clarks Companies North Amenica Even allowing

for the mitigating impact of Anti Dumping Duties being

discontinued 1in March 2011, the full year increase in product
costs ansing from such factors was 1n excess of £100 million
Our key focus has therefore been on sustaining the momentum
of the Group’s growth 1n both sales and profitability 1n the
face of an uncertain econotine climate and on absorbing the
unprecedented surge in cost inflation without suffering long-
term damage to volumes or margins

I am delighted to report that our efforts met with a good
measure of success Group turnover rose by 9 1% 1n the year
to £1 4bn, exactly in line with the sales growth posted 1n
2010/11 M 1s worth highlighting again the extent to which
this growth 15 being driven by the mcreasingly global footprint
of our business Turmover 1n our “home” market of the UK
and Republi. of Ireland increased by a respectable 3 3% In
comparison our sales mn international markets outside North
America rose by 19 6% with more than a milhon added pairs
sold In North America we achieved turnover growth of 11 5%,
an incremental step worth more than $100m, with the volume
increased by 1 Sm pairs to reach a remarkable new record

of 20m pairs 1n that market for the first ime This means

that turnover outside the UK and Republic of Ireland now
accounts for 37 0% of the Group total, conlirming a trend 1
can only see accelerating n the future as we pursue our
global growth strategy

Operating profits increased by 4 4% to £115 8m, another

new record for the Group and one which builds solidly on

the exceptionally strong result reported last year Despite

the margin pressures and challenging market conditions,
particularly in the UK and Lurope, we chose 1o take a

longer term strategic view of the importance of maintaining

a high level of investment 1n our business 1n order to raise
brand awareness, develop our network of distribution i key
markets around the world and to buld global infrastructure
and capability One striking example of this strategic intent

15 that we increased our global marketing expenditure in

the year by £10 2m or 19 7% to £61 9m, including our first
direct-to-consumer marketing campaign 1n North America
We also invested £4 7m 1n the first phase of our globalisation
programme, “Clarks GLOBAL”, aimed at developing a new
regional business structure supported by more consistent
functional operations and processes We continued to 1nvest

a great deal of Lime, resource and financial capital 1n building
our systems and logistics capabilities in North Ameriea,
projects which are described 1n more detail later in this report
Whilst higher revenue invesiment 1n areas such as these
moderated profits growth, we were helped by reduced costs

n other areas Exchange vanances, which in the previous
year featured an exchange loss of £12 3m resulting from
foreign exchange contracts denominated 1n Dollars and Euros,
were msigmficant m the current year The cost of long-term
mecentives for Executives and sentor managers also reduced
sigmficantly as a result of lower earmings growth, the nat
charge falling from £16 5mn 2010/11 to £6 3m




As planned there was mimimal property disposal activity
during the year resulling 1n exceptional profits of only £0 2m,
compared with a £5 Im gain recogmsed last year on the
disposal of a residennal portfolio 1n Street and the final tranche
of development land on the Houndwood site In additton,
finaneing costs increased with the external interest charge of
£2 2m (2010/11 = £1 Om}) reflecting a higher trend 1n average
borrowings during the year The imputed cost of financing the
Group’s pension habilities also rose from £6 6m to £7 5m,
mamly due to adverse movements m the bond yields used to
value those liabiliies This combination of divergent factors
left profits before tax trailing 2 49 below last year at £106 1m
The Group’s effective rate of corporation tax benefited from
the previously announced 1eduction in the UK rate, falling 1o
26 3% (2010/11 — 28 0%) despite the 1mpact of increased
overseas profits taxable at higher rates The resultant post-tax
profits ended marginally above the prior year at £77 5m,
whilst earnings per share were 09 pence (0 7%) higher at
130 5 pence per share Given the predominantly hostile
economic Jlimate facing us this year, together with the nisks
posed to our business by product cost inflation and the
imperative of preserving our high investment in future global
growth, | am more than satisfied at being able to present this
pieture of continued strong returns to shareholders 1 believe
these results continue to validate our strategy as the right one
for the business and that we remain firmly on track 1o delwer

I commented m my half-year report on the increased working
capital requirement created by higher product unn costs
feeding through into hugher stock values and by the volume
growth in our global business lo some extent that working
capital growth has moderated in the second half as we took
vigorous action to hiquidate our seasonal stock positions ahead
of the Spring/Summer 2012 season m both retail and wholesale
distnbution channels Working capital ended the year 15 9%
ahead of 2010/11 levels, mcluding a growth of 9 1% 1in the
value of stock Fixed assets also inureased strongly as capital
expenditure rose to £60 8m, 45 8% hugher than 1n the previous
year The principal elements of the capilal programme were,

as planned, our investment in SAP technology 1n North
America which accounted for £13 1m of spend and the Hanover
distribution centre representing a further £15 8m We also
stepped up by 25 3% our investment in tew stores and refitting
existing stores on both sides of the Atlantic, encouraged by

the strong commercial returns we are experiencing so far

from rolling out our new C7 design format on a glebal scale

All other key components of our cash flow were consistent

with our expectations, including a continuation of the defient
coniributions agreed with the board of pension trustees as
required to manage our long-term defined henefit pension
scheme nisks 1n the UK and North Amenca Contributions in
the year totalled £16 2m 1n the UK (2010/11 — £29 5m) and
$6 3m 1n the US (2010/11 - $8 Om), helping to produce a
reduced year end defieit of £79 3m (£88 2m)

The strength of our cash flow and balance sheet remans of
fundamental importance tv our future prospects Although
the year end balance sheet reflects a growth of some 15 9%
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In operating capital, the underlying causes clearly point to the
twin impact of higher product costs and our capital investment
programme Net borrowings ended the year at £2 5m, a reversal
of last year’s net cash positive position of £18 6m but still an
extremely healthy state of affairs especially when considered

i the light of the mcreased investment activities already
undertaken Implied gearing stands at a very modest 2 2%

As explained 1n my last report, we do anticipate that it will be
necessary to run the Group with moderately increased levels of
debt over the next two 1o three years in order to complete the
planned programme of infrastructure mnvestment and to support
the growth 1n trading operattons To facilitate this, our Fiance
Director Rebin Beacham has recently completed a refinancing
of the Group’s borrowing facilities covering the period until
March 2016 We will carefully regulate the pace and scale

of our investment programme to realise the Group’s growth
potential whilst managing the attendant financial risks 1n a
conservative way

In the following sechions 1 have summarised, at a high level,
some of the major factors influencing the performance of
Clarks International and Clarks Compames North America
during the year

CLARKS INTERMNATIONAL

After several years of consistent growth, the profitahility of
Clarks Internaticnal as a whole fell short of expectations
Consolidated turnover rose by 8 4% to £873 6m but divisional
operating profits were badly hit by elevated product costs
amounting to over £70m 1n the year Profits therefore fell by

16 5% 10 £77 Tm

There were sharp contrasts in trading performance according
to geography and channel In both the UK and Repubhe of
Ireland (ROL), the prevailing mood of consumer pessimism
intensified as did the competitive pressures facing the retail
sector in particular In many respects our retail store estate
continued to perform creditably 1in spite of this challenging
environment Like-for-like sales performance averaged +4 4%
overall, comfortably ahead of the BRC retail sector index

of +1 4% Operatienal standards 1n stores and cost control
remained strong, Back-to-School again set new sales records
and there were several weeks of excellent stock clearance and
cash margin generation during sale periods However, what
we were consistently unable to achieve was a sufficiently large
full-price mix, especially 1n the women’s product category
Higher than planned volumes of promotional and sale product
combined with imtial margins already reduced by higher
product costs resulted in a marked dilution 1n the quality of
our achieved margins Although sales performance held up
well, average gross margins therefore weakened by 6% and
aggregate cash margin fell back by 6 6% on the previous year
Sumlar trends also emerged in our Factory Shopping channel,
where comparative sales increased by 4 3% and average
selling prices remained strong but gross margins fell by 1 9%
so that cash margin {ailed to match the previous year
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S REPORT
continued

The mamfest highlight in our UK performance proved to be the
continued robust progress of our multi-channel retailing (MCR)
channel Launched in 2009, the combned home delivery and
collect-from-store business had grown by the end of the year to
£45 9m i turnover and £14 Tm 1 operating profits Unit sales
i the year rose by 39 39 to 1 5m pairs, with sales jumping

by 42 7%, we did however encounter common challenges with
product costs and margin mix together with a planned rise

1n operating costs assaciated with fulfilment and marketing,
yielding a rather diluted profit improvement of 3 9% on
2010/11 This year also saw the launch of 4 new online trading
capability in parts of Europe, focused 1nitially on German and
French language sites with order fulfilment from our Westway
distribution centre Although trading velumes have not quite
met our expeciations, cash margins n the first year have
exceeded £2m and there have been many valuable lessons

on which to build for the future

The severe economic preblems besetting the UK and ROI
also left their mark on our wholesale results 1n these markets
Although despatch volumes fell by 5 2%, a positive trend

m average price and mix enabled us to hold our turnever
base level with 2010/11 at £53 4m Product cost increases

of more than £3m could not however be recouped, leaving
cash achieved margin 14 2% lower [ have been encouraged
by the resilience and pragmatism displayed by our UK and
ROI wholesale team over several seasons n the face of trying
economic conditions We will continue to focus on working
with our wholesale partners to maximise the Clarks business
and to rebuld the margin performance we have achieved prior
to this year

In contrast to the harsh climate we encountered 1n the UK and
ROL, our international wholesale, franclhuse and online business
expenienced a record year of growth Aggregate despatches
grew by 14 7% to 8 1m pairs, whilst net turnover rose by

26 4% to £263 1m boaosted by a £3 per pair improvement 1n
average selling prices Even this buoyant volume growth was
undermined to some degree by increased product costs, leaving
average gross margins of 48 0% some 4 49% lower than those
achieved m the previous year Despite lower rates of margin

the overall cash profits from this business advanced strongly

to £120 3m, 16 8% better than 2010/11 We continued

to mvest furiher 1n key markets to build infrastructure,
increase brand awareness and widen our disiribution base

This includes the set-up costs associated with the launch of
our Indian joint venture business, which attracted revenue
imestment of £2 3m in the year Terntory-based expendiure
therefere rose by £7 0m or 18 0% although this increase was
still outstripped by the pace of our trading growth Controllable
profits from all international operations improved by 16 0%

to £74 2in, representing the prune source of profits growth in
the Clarks International business 1 would hike to extend my
thanks and congratulations to the entire international team
who have dehivered, under Ken Dobinson’s leadership, this
substantial achievement

The international division embraces markets with wide
geographie, cultural and seasonal diversity, different operating
models and varying stages of matunty As might be expected
there are also differing rates of growth, but impressively all
the main regional groupings showed positive top-line growth in
the year and all, with the sole exception of Europe, generated
improvements in controllable profits The China region
including Hong Kong and Korea again posted encouraging
volume gains, with pairs up by 26 6% and regional profits
advancing by more than 70% on the strength of high average
prices and good margins Our widely spread distributor
markets 1n the Middle East, South America, South East Asia
and Australasia were also buoyant, matching the volume
growth of China and delwvering a 59 4% uplifi in profits
Despite the impact of last year’s tsunam, our business in Japan
achieved growth 1n sales volume of 21 7% whilst profits surged
by 67 1% helped by a favourable trend n exchange translation
on the Yen In Incha our focus this year was on establishing
our newly launched jornt venture company, estublishing a
brand presence and new distribution whilst forming the team
infrastructure and operations capahbilily necessary Lo grow the
bustness for the future During the year we have opened 15
stores and 28 shop-1n-shop locations 1n India, together with
more than 30 wholesale distribution points In our launch year
we achieved net turnover of £3 1m whilst eperating losses of
£1 3m were shightly favourable to plan We anticipate that
2012/13 will bring further strong growth 1n scale for our Indian
operations but that it will take at least two more years

10 reach break-even

The growing uncertainty created 1n both global financial
markets and real local conditions by the sovereign debt erisis
i the Eurozone has been exhaustively covered in the media
From the perspective of European order volumes, our business
exhibited a pleasing resilience with despatches ahead of last
year by 5 5% and turnover improving by 9 8% There was
continued solid progress m the mature markets of Northern
Europe together with strong volume growth of 27 3% in the
developing Central and Eastern European region However
there were increasing signs of detenorating macro economc
conditions beginning to impact on consumer demand and
retailer confidence 1n some markets, most notably 1n Southern
Europe A parucular focus for some of these challenges was
Spain, a strategically important market for us with a high
concentration of franchise stores Despatches fell by 10 2%
and turnover by 6 7% n the Spamish market, prompting

us to defer some of our planned investment 1n brand and
business development until local conditions 1mprove Despile
the positive trend i trading volumes the profitamlity of our
European operations reduced shightly im the year, by 4 7%
overall, resulting pnmanly from the combined impact of higher
product costs and worsening conditions 1n the Seuth Protecting
our European business from 1he potential impact of economic
disruption and weak demand will certainly form one of our key
strategic priorities 1n 2012/13




NORTII AMERICA

Thss has been a year of enormous change for our North
American business Jin Salzano has begun to bring to bear
our viston for the Company’s future strategic direction and
priorities following his appointment n the summer of 2011
We have made further major stndes forward 1n the project to
implement SAP as our main technology platform, and begun
the build phase of the new distribution centre 1n Hanover,
Pennsylvama We have started Lo work more closely together
across regional and functional boundaries 1n areas such

as product, marketing, supply chain and group services,
sharing best practice and moving towards more commonality
mn business processes It s greatly to the credit of the North
American team that they have supported all of this activity
without losing focus on runming the business day to day and
without sacrificing any potential growth The year was marked
by achievement of several new records, including the first
time we have reached 20m pawrs on the strength of 8 1%
volume growth, a new record for turnover of $839 0m (+14 1%
on last year), and a dhvisional operating profit of $84 1m
which, although not quite a record fell only 1 1% short of the
outstanding 2010/11 result but after having invesied an extra
cost of $7m 1n our first ever national media campaign and
after absorbing some 360m 1n product cost inflation

Wholesale demand for our products remained fairly robust,
sales of $486 Om chmbing 12 6% on the previous year
Wholesale divisional profits dechmed by 17 2% to $60 3m
The result for Canada especially stands out, with annual sales
of $83 6m representing growth of 23 0% The ¢ Drect 1o
Consumer” segment of our North American wholesale business
was the strongest growth area in the year, with sales up 32%
overall and featuring QVC 1n particular The independent
account segment also fared well, growing by 15% on 2010/11
levels Department stores reman the dominant customer type
from an overall volume perspective and continued to expand

at a moderate rate of 8%, driven by women’s We also grew
our average price per pair by 5 6% and sought to reduce our
reliance on off-price channels of distribution 1n order to focus
on a hugher value imix of product at higher price points and
with nicher margins This strategy succeeded to an extent but
was hampered by lower imtial margins in the Spring and by
the need for greater than planned markdowns and sales
allowances to drive inventory clearance We a1m to concentrate
1n the coming year on further improving the quality of our
procuet and distribution muix 1n order to sustain higher average
prices and margins and to combat an expected further rise in
our product costs

Our retail trading performance continued to 1mpress
throughout the year Comparative sales increased by 6 7% on
top of the 99% growth posted m 2010/11, companng highly
favourably to the FDR A retail sector index of + 3 6%, and with
outlet stores espectally strong at +10 9% The pace of our store
expansion programme picked up as we opened 22 new stores
m the year and closed 11, and were particularly encouraged

by the imitial results from our first C7 store mnvestments whch
dehvered higher than expecled trading outcomes and offered
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significant savings in fit-out costs Retail sales excluding
online reached 8337 1m, 13 5% ahead of last year Average
gross margins reduced by 099 as a result of lower 1mtial
margins and a moderate nse 1n promotional activity, but tight
control of store expenditure and field management costs
helped drive divisional trading profit up to $25 6m, a 39 1%
improvement on 2010/11 I am delighted to report that
following several vears of new investment, the retail estate
has evolved a more mature operating model which 1s capable
of delivering consistent improvement in profitabihity as well
as offering a sigmificant opportunity for volume growth

As | highhghted 1n my September report, one of the most
exciting developments during the year was the launch of our
new multi-channel (MCR) sales model Ints first year of
operations MCR achieved sales of $11 1m, almost three Limes
the anticipated level, and generated a trading profit of §3 7m
or 33 4% of sales We altracted some 7 million visntors to the
website during the year with an average conversion of 1 7%,
whilst key operational metrics such as our rate of returns were
favourable at 19% We will seek to capitalise on this suecessful
launch in the coming year through a conunued focus on
optimising the site and online service, further investment

1n online markeling and paul search, and by exploring new
ways of engaging with consumers via mobile, tablets and
1n-store kiosks

Progress has been excellent with our two main infrastruciure
projects, the implementation of SAP in North America and the
construction of our new distnibution centre ‘1 hese activities,
together with the related globahisation programme, have of
course absorbed a substantial amount of ime and people
resources The SAP project in particular has also heen
accompanied by demanding hme constraints, but 1 am pleased
to confirm that our dedicated project team achieved the key
mlestone of completing the “blueprint™ phase 1n December
and that the build phase for our solution was proceeding 10 plan
at the time of writing We remain presently on track for an
October 2012 go-live, creating the basis for a single techmeal
platform and common business processes on which to build
our future global operations The Hanover distribution facility
1s now under construction, with building work scheduled for
completion this summer The mechanical handling systems
solution 13 at an advanced siage of planming with installation
expected to be completed 1 the Spring of 2013 Testing and
Iive cutover of product will follow 1n the Fall 2013 season

The development of these major projects will require a
massive collective effort 1n change management and effective
solution delivery over the next two years or so We will need to
bring 1o bear all our in-house experience as well as external
experhise Lo make this work a suecess 1 do not underestimate
the attendant rsks of over-extending our resources and
capabilities, nor the polential disruption to business-zs-usual
activities during the cniical transition pertods




14

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT
continued

STRATEGY AND BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

Our vision for the Group 1s 1o make Clarks the leading everyday
global footweur brand The business strategy underpinnming that
viston has not changed 1n its fundamentals from that 1 have
previously described From a regional perspective our main
objectives must be to strengthen our current dominant position
in the UK and ROI markets, building on our existing market
share, to achieve much faster growth 1n key international
markets where the presence of our brand 1s less well developed,
and to build further on our current position of strength i

North America, leveraging the global power of the brand and
out channel expertise to drive new growth opportumties Over
the next five years my aspiration 1s 1o see the Group expand its
volume base, 1ts turnover and s profitability 1n line with its
current strong growth trgjectory

The challenging condittons encountered mn the UK and ROI
have prompted us to undertake a more comprehensive review
of our strategic plans for that market during the year Whilst
we did not conclude 1n favour of embarking on fundamental
changes, we helieve 1t will be necessary to continue the
curreni programme of exiing unprofitable store locations as
lease conditions permit 1n erder to manage our exposure to
fixed retail capacity This wall be a gradual and long-term
process which will still leave us with a substanual mvestment
i retail distribution 1n our home market At the same time,
we have 1dentified a2 numbher of opportunities to improve the
efhciency of our store operautons as well as the service we offer
to consumers by mvesting 1n both in-store technology and in
overhauling some aspects of our service model Another key
aspect of our UK strategy 1s to drive faster growth with our
very successful multi-channel selling model, developing new
ways of engaging with consumers via digital technologies and
expanding our offer to include an onlhine children’s business
Our overall approach to the UK and ROI, our most mature
markets where the absolute growth potential 15 most himited,
will be to protect our dominant brand position and evelve a
channel mix which 1s both sustainable and profitable over the
long-term Our focus will be on improving the qualhty of our
profit performance rather than on growth for its own sake

The markets within our International division offer rich growth
potential for the future In the wholesale channel we believe
there are opportunities to build scale by improving our service
levels to internaticnal key accounts and leading independents,
increasing the number of shop-1n-shop investments and
rothing out enhancements n areas such as dala connectivity
Another key driver of international growth will continue to be
the roll-out of our highly successful franchise store format
2011/12 saw the opemng of a further 79 new stores despite
the uncertain trading environment We aim to maintain the
pace of our programme at around 100 new openings per year
over the coming few years, concentrating on recruiting a wider
range of franchise partners and on achieving the best qualnty
mix of locations Expanding our online selling model into
international markets, firstly across Europe and later in Asia,
will further enhance our channel offering Following on the
launch this year of the German and French language sites,

we plan to implement a Spamsh and Dutch equivalent 1n the
first half of 2012 and to lcarn from our experience so {ar Lo
improve operational capability 1n managing delivery, returns
and payment methods In general we will be seeking to build
on dll the great groundwork done over the past few years

to establish the brand, together with a suntable network of
distribution and an effective operational capability 1n regions
as diverse as Europe, China, India, the Middle East and
South Amenca Our businesses in these regions will of course
evolve at varying rales bul are targeted to deliver around 15%
compound growth overall

In North America we already enjoy a position of considerable
strength Our strategy for growth rests 1n large part on
expanding our retail presence 1n both the United States and
Canada, with more than 130 new locations being planned by
2016 We are also evaluating the opportumty to accelerate our
retall growih by establishing a franchise format which draws on
the experience gained from our international franchise model
In the wholesale channel we believe there 1s an opportunity

to enhance our service and sales support model to further
exploit our powerful brand position in department stores, and
1n particular to expand our share of the dress casval product
segment We are eager to capitalise on the early success of our
online business, beginning with improving the performance

of the website and the shopping experience for consumers and
aiming over the longer term to posiion ourselves as one of the
leading online fostwear brands 1n the North American market
We also see exating potential to expand our clhildren’s offering,
both in a greater number of Clarks stores and by selling
through a carefully selected group of wholesale customers who
share our commitment to delivering a best-in-class fiting and
service proposiion Again we will focus generally on building
a sustainable model for our distrbution which supporis a
better mix of product at higher price pownts, limting the scale
of discounted busmess 1 believe the North American market
offers a wealth of growth opportunities for the future and

will become an mcreasingly important contributor to Group
performance

These regional growth plans are underpinned by, and
predicated upon, an ambitious programme of change across
the product, marketing, supply chain and services functions
In product we aspire to deliver global product ranges, based
on markel and consumer msight, which consistently deliver
the brand DNA of comfort, quality and fit 1n a stylish and
innovative way In marketing we are working towards defining
a clear and consistent brand positioning and developing a new
commumcalions platform which seeks to recruit new consumers
10 our brand whulst retaining our current loyal consumers In
the supply chain arena we aim to drive service improvements,
10 1ntegrate our planning operations and ultmately to create

a single sourcing orgamisation whech matches global supply
and demand and delivers the best possible product costs from
factonies In the services functions we aim to deliver efficient
finance, IT and human resources capabilities, adopting best
practice wherever possible and focused on supporting the
ongotng commeraial growth of the regions and markets




In all of these parts of the Group, work 15 ongoing to establish
new team structures, new ways of working and better ways of
collaborating together These activities will continue to evolve
over the coming years to become a new way of operating, and
are essential 1o enable us to realise our future vision for the
Group as a global business

TRADING OUTLOOK

We continue to operate 1o a volatile and fast changing
commercial world, charactenised as much as anything by
economic uncertainty For our UK consumers there would
appear to be few reasons to feel confidence 1n the return of

a more secure, prosperous feel-good factor on the tmmediate
honzon, 1ather I would anticipate that 2012/13 will bring a
repeat of the very challenging climale we experienced last
year We have consequenily based our UK plans for the year
on very hmited volume growth but with the intent of shafting
some of the promotional and discounted volume seld last year
onto a full-price basis with some recovery to margins In

the international markets, the outlook 1n general looks more
promising and we have planned for continued growth The
area of most concern 1s the Eurozone, where the impact of

the sovereign debt crisis on financal markets and consumer
senliment continues to be felt We have little direct exposure to
the Greek economy but the all-pervasive “contagion” nisk and
dampeming effect on business confidencc s ikely to hold down
growlh 1n most European markets, especially 1n the South

We have planned for minimal growth in the coming year but
anticipale that this impact may he absorbed at the Group level
by faster than projected growth rates in some of the distributor
markets of South America and the Middle East as well as in
Asia We have a range of contingency actions at hand to it
the damage i the event of a disorderly withdrawal of member
states from the euro, although there are no current indications
that such a scenario 1s likely to matenialise

The North American economy has demonstrated 11s resihence
by emerging 1n reasonable health from the recession, even if
not all the key indicators point to positive trends in the future
Our experience of the past year s that consumer demand
appears stable if not growing but that value for money remains
of prime importance The outlook for the coming year 15
therefore reasonably encouraging but we may be challenged

to maintain our trading volumes where we are moving our price
ponts forward in order to combat cost inflation As 1s often

the case across our markets, our success 1s likely to depend

on our ability to offer consumers product groups which deliver
authenticity, style and innovation at great prices As the content
of this report suggests, we have schieved a pleasing momentum
behind our North American business and | would expect us to
sustain some moderate growth again in 2012/13

The new financial year kas hegun with a mixed set of
performance indicators  Qur wholesale forward order book for
the Spring/Summer 2012 season reflects strong growth trends
1n many nternational markets, but some softness 1n European
orders most notably Spain In North America overall orders
are shghtly down on last year in pairs but comfortably higher

in sales value, indicating how increased average prices may
restrict our volume opporturty Retail trading in the UK has
fallen marginally helow cxpectations 1n the first few weeks

of the year, although there are positive early signs of a strong
transition 1nto sales of full-price Spring/Summer product
ranges In the US our retail trading pattern has been 1n positive
territory and grves confidence for a year of continued growth
The MCR husiness on both sides of the Atlantic reflects an
upward curve in demand and has been strengthened by a
willingness to share experience and best practice Whalst 1t 1s
certanly too early in the year to draw reliable conclusions from
these first signs, I remain guardedly optimastic that the Group
will continue to make sound progress with building vur sales
and profit performance 1n 2012/13 whilst delivering the key

components of our strategy

Although as an mternational trading entity the Group remains
exposed to global economic. forces, 1n one respect the risks to
our future prospects have moderated Inflation 1n product costs
remains a reality in the industry and 1s Iikely to be with us for
the foreseeable future However, the seventy of the mereases
has reduced considerably from u year ago We anlicipate
further cost increases 1n Clarks International and in North
America during 2012/13, although 1t 1s worth remembering
these are on top of the unprecedented escalation we absorbed
in the previous year Much work 1s under way throughout

the business, ranging from addressing product complexity to
rationalising our sourcing hase, to find langer term solutions
to the problem of higher product costs Part of the answer

of course hes in dnving continued growth, but we must at

the same tume ensure that we can achieve product margins
throughout the world which will protect the quality of cur
earnings and anchor the sustainalnhity of shareholder returns

[ would hike to conclude my report by offering my heartfelt
thanks to all colleagues across the global business who

have contnbuted so much to making the Clarks story one of
enduring success This has been a tough year, marked by
diverse economc pressures and a large amount of business
change We have placed many demands on our people at

all levels and challenged ourselves to succeed The resulis
presented here are a testament 1o a great collective effort,
one for us to take pride in 1 look forward to continuing, with
your support, our journey towards making Clarks a force to be
reckoned with on the global stage

MELISSA POTTER
Chief Executive

23rd March 2012
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR
Group turnover increased to £1,398 1m from £1,281 3m,
an increase of 9 1%

Group profit before 1nterest, share of operating loss of jomnt
venture and exceptional ilems rose by 4 49 1o £115 8m
bul due to lower profits on disposal of fixed assets of L0 2m
compared to £5 1m in the prior year, Group profit before
interest fell by 0 3% to £115 5m

Profit before 1ax fell by 2 4% to £106 1m due to increased
pension financing costs of £7 5m compared to £6 6m in the
prior year and higher external interest costs of £1 9m compared
to £0 6m 1n the prior year Profit after tax of £77 5m 15 0 5%
higher than last year's comparative of £77 1Im Post exceptional
earnings per share increased to 130 5 pence per share from
129 6 pence last year Ignoring the impact of exceptional asset
disposal gains, the underlying growth in earnings per share
was 6 4%




A detailed review of trading performance for each business

division 15 provided 1n the Chiefl Executive’s report on pages
10to 15

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In my report last year 1 stated that having evaluated the
henefits of adepting full International Financial Reporting
Standards (1IFRS) compared to the costs involved in
transitioning to the new standards, the Board decided that
1t would not be 1n the best interests of the Shareholders to
adopt IFRS last year

The Accounting Standard Board (ASB) had previously 1ssued
Financial Reporting Exposure Draft (FRED) 43/44 on the
future of financial reporting 1n the UK which proposed that
non-publicly accountable entities (private entities) that exceed
a size threshold could choose to apply a new Financial
Reporting Standard for Medium Sized Entities (FRS-ME)

or adopt full [nternational Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) Comments have now been received by the ASB and
an updated exposure draft has now been 1ssued

The Group continue Lo await the publication of the final FRS-
ME after which a decision will be made as to whether to adopt
this mstead of full IFRS The most hkely adoption date for the
Group will now he for finanoal statements relatng to the year
ended on 31st January 2016

PRESEXTATION OF RESULTS

In hine with previous years, we have adopted 4 columnar format
for the Group profit and lass account in order to distinguish

as clearly as possible between the performance of the core
footwear operations and the impact of exceptional expenditure
and income

We have again chosen to report on the face of the Group profit
and loss account the costs of providing long-term mcentive
schemes to Executive Directors and senmior management as a
separate item charged 1n arriving at operating profit In the
current year the profit and loss charge has decreased to £6 3m
(2010/11 — £16 5m) 1n consequence of the decreased footwear
profitability of the Group Please refer to the “Long-term
[ncentive Plan” section of the remuneration report on page

34 for a full description

We have separately reported the results of our joint venture 1n
India, Clarks Future Footwear Lid This joint venture was set
up during 2010 and commenced trading 1n Apnil 2011 In hine
with FRS 9 (Associales and Joint Venlures) we have used the
gruss equily method of consolilation whereby our share of the
gruss assets and habihties underlying the net amount of the
mvestment 1s shown 1n aggregate on the face of the balance
sheet In the profit and loss account our share of the jomnt
venture’s turnover 15 noled and our share of operating losses
in the jomt venture 1s shown below Group operaling profits
The Group’s share of losses m the year was £0 5m (2010/11 .
loss of £0 1m) The Group's share of the joint venture’s turnover
of £1 6m (2010/11 —~ £ml) has also been reported separately
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EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Profits on disposal of fixed assets of £0 2m (2010/11 — £3 Ym)
have heen recogmsed helow operating profits in accordance
with FRS 3 (Reporting Financial Performance), Paragraph 20
(c} and represents a small number of low value disposals

In total an exceptional gam before taxation of £0 2m1s
reporled (2010/11 a gain of £5 1m)

FINANCING COSTS

Financing costs of £9 4m (2010/11 — £7 2m) comprise net
bank miterest charges of £1 9m {2010/11 — £0 6m) and net
pension financing costs of £7 5m (2010/11 — £6 6m) Pension
financing 1s an imputed charge caleulated 1n acecordance
with Finanual Reporting Standard 17 and represents the
difference between the interest charge on the Group’s pension
Liabiliies and the expected return on the penston assets, the
former based on a discount rate derived from high quahity
corporate bonds

TAXATION

The effective 1ax rate on earnings before exceptional items s
27 0% (2010/11 ~- 29 7%) The tax charge on current year
earnings, excluding the effect of prior penod changes, 15

28 8% compared to 29 5% 1n the prior period The ¢ 7% point
decrease 1n the underlying Group effective rate of tax 1s manly
due 1o the 1mpact of lower UK tax rates partly offset by an
increased proportion of earmngs generated 1n North America
where vorporate tax rates are higher

The Group tax charge 1s higher than the UK corporate tax rate
of 26 3% due to the international mix of earnings taxed overseas
at higher rates and because UK tax relief 1s not obtained for
commeruial bulding depreciation and lease exit costs

On 21 March 2012 the UK government announced that from
1 Apnil 2012 the UK corporate tax rate will reduce from 26%
te 249 with the intention to further reduce the rate by 1% &
vear to 22% This change of rate will be enacted when the
2012 Finance Acl s 1ssued later this year

Subject to the enactment of this rate reduction and assuming a
stable mix of international earmings, it 15 anticipated that the
Group pre-exceptional tax rate next year will be 1 2% points
lower at around 27 6%

For the year ended 31 January 2012 the enacted corporation
tax rate from 1 April 2012 was 25% This reduction 1n tax rate
has given rise to a reduced provision for UK deferred taxes at
the year end, for which a credit of £0 9m 1s included within the
tax charge Further reductions in deferred taxes are expecied
as the UK rate reduces to 22%
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
contiued

BALANCE SHEET

Capital employed has increased by £80 3m or 18 3% 1o

£519 6m at 31 Janwary 2012 Our working capital levels in
Clarks International are £42 Om higher than last year with
stock levels increasing by £16 8m (£50 3m 1ncrease 1n the
prior year) to £201 Im Average Clarks International stock cost
per pair increased by 8 5% to £12 04 but pairs held reduced
15% 10 15 1m pairs In North America stock levels increased
by 817 2m (8 5%) to $219 5m Average US stock cost per pair
increased by 8 3% and pairs increased by just 0 1%

Our fixed asset value has increased by £31 Om (15 8%) to
£227 T as we continue to invest i the business n retail
stores both in the UK and North Amenica, and have continued
to roll out our international franchise store programme The
ifrastructure 1nvestment 1n North Amenca continued during
2011 Dunng the year, an additional $25 3m was invested

m the Hanover Logistics Centre project bringing the total
invested 1o date to $34 6m Project Atlas (our roll out of SAP
into CCNA) was approved 1n eatly 2011 and during the year
$20 6m was invested globally in this project with §12 4m
wncurred 1n the US

We have relocated and opened 7 new owned stores in the UK
at a cost of £1 9m (previous year being 3 stores at a cost of
£04m) We have also refitted a further 25 stores at a cost of
£4 3m (previous year being 34 stores at a cost of £4 8m) In
addition we have invested capital expenditure during the year
10 66 new mternational franchise stores including 15 owned
relal stores opened 1n India at a cost of £1 5m (previous year
being 48 stores at a cost of £1 2m) At the balance sheet date
our estate of International franchise stores numbers 200

We have relocated and opened 26 new stores 1n North America
at a cost of $8 3m {previous year 28 stores at a cost of $8 9m)
We have also refitted a further 2 stores at a cost of $0 6m
(previous year 5 slores at a cosl of $0 9m)

Resultant Group capital expendiure of £60 8m (2010/11
— £41 Tm) 1emained well ahead of the level of depreciation
charged of £279m (2010/11 ~ £27 8m)

Provisions excluding deferred tax of £20 5m have decreased by
£5 4m on last year as we are holding lower provisions for long-
term mcentives for Executives and sentor managers

Due to the increases in working capital and higher levels of

capital investment, offset by lower pension deficit funding we

are reporting a net borrowings position of £9 5m, £28 im

unfavourable to last year’s net cash position of £18 6m Cash }
flow generated from operating activines of £68 Om was £27 Tm ‘
higher than last year’s £40 3m duven predominantly by the

lower incieases 1n working capital levels and pension deficit

funding Cash outflows from investing activities of £48 2m

were hugher than the prior year’s comparative of £41 4m

Shareholders’ funds stand at £424 2m, £57 3m higher than last
year's comparative Net assets of £503 5m were £48 4m higher
than last year and the reduetion of £8 9m 1n the pension defeit
has further contributed to the improved balance sheet position

PENSIONS

The deficil 1n the Company’s defined benefit pension scheme
conhinues to impact the Group's trading results and balance
sheet At the year end the deficit amounted to £79 3m, £8 9m
lower than that disclosed at 31 January 2011 (£88 2m)
During the year the position has been very volatile due to the
movements 1n bond yrelds and equity valuations The year end
position reflected the latest formal actuanial valuation carried
out as at 5 April 2011

The cost of all Group pension schemes 1s shown in Note 21
to the financial statements

Actuarial gains and losses are shown 1n the Statement of
Total Recogmsed Gains and Losses on page 49

During the financial year cash contnbutions into the main UK |
fund by way of dcfieit funding amounted 10 £16 2m (2010411
— £295m) This included an acceleration of a payment of

£13 2m which dd not fall due until 5 April 2012 (£17 Om was
accelerated into 2010/11 which did not fall due unt:l 5 April
2011) Contributions to the mam US defined benefit fund
amounted to $10 Om (2010/11 — $8 Om}




TREASURY OPERATIONS

The Group’s funding, hquidity, currency and interest rate

nisks are managed by a lreasury Committee working within a
framework of policies authonsed by the Board The policies are
reviewed and updated annually where necessary

FUNDING AND LIQUIDITY

The Group’s borrowing facilities comprise a Revolving Credit
Facility with a syndicate of five major hanks and a total facility
amount of £200 Om Thus facihity was renewed and extended
during the year and 1s due 1o expire 1n March 2016 The Croup
also has UK and other overseas short-term facalities amounting
t0 £35 3 m (2010/11 — £34 6m)

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group 15 exposed to interest rate nsk principally in
relation to borrowings and deposits denominated 1n Sterling,
US Dollar and the Euro ‘I he Group’s poliLy 1s to use dervative
contracts wheie appropriate to manntain a mix of fixed and
floating 1ate borrowings to manage this nisk

CURRENCY RISK

The Treasury Commuttee manages currency exposure relaling
10 the Group’s trading operations by entermg into a combination
of fixed forward dated and structured inshuments at key points
throughout each season based on detailed forecasts of future
transaction flows The main currencies m order of transactional
value are US Dollar, Euro and Japanese Yen The US Dollar

15 used primarily for sourcing footwear from outside the USA,
examples being Brazil and the Far East Contracts are placed
competitively with relationship banks Income and expenditure
flows 1n the same currency are offset as far as possible through
natural hedging and as a result sales and purchasing activity
within the Euro zone 1s consolidated

At the balance sheet date, the Group's estimated currency
exposure for the Autumn Winter 2012 season was covered 1n
line wath policy and for earlier seasons 100% covered The total
value of fixed dated sale and purchase currency contracts at the
balance sheet date was £692 9m (2010/11 — £650 2m)

ROBIXN BEACIAM
Finance Director

23rd March 2012

19



corporate
nolicres

22
25
26
32

Corporate Governance

Healih and Safety Summary

Corporate Social Responsibility Summary
Remuneration Report




22

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

INTRODUCTION

The Group 15 commutted to lagh standards of corporate
governance The Board 1s accountable to the Company’s
shareholders for good governance and this statement describes
how the Group supports the prinaiples laid down in the new
UK Corporate Governance Code (‘the Code’) as 1ssued by the
Financial Reporting Council in June 2010 As a private limited
company the Group 15 not requred to adhere to the Code

but does so on a voluntary basis This statement descnibes

how the principles of the Code are applied and reports on the
Group’s compliance with the Code’s provisions throughout

the year ended 31st January 2012 Where the Group has not
complied with the provisions the Directors have disclosed the
fact and their reasons for believing that these omissions do not
compromuse the high standards of corporate governance In
furtherance of the principles of good corporate governance,

the Board and Board Committees operate m the following ways

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

'The Board meets regularly throughout the year and on
additional oceasions as required The Company Secretary
mamntains a record of attendance at Board meetings and
Commitlee meetings, further details of which are disclosed

1n the table opposite The Board has a schedule of matters
speaifically reserved to itself for decision, such as the approval
of annual and interim report and accounts and annual budgets
and the declaration of dividends

It 15 the function of the Board to ensure that high standards of
corporate governance are mamntained throughout the Group
T he remaimng paragraphs of this report on corporate

governance standards highlight the key 1ssues and 1dentify
any areas of non-compliance and the reasons for them

The Board currently consists of the Non-Executive Chairman,
four other Non-Execuhve Directors and two Executive Directors
The biographical details of the Board members are set out

on pages 38 and 39 The Directors bring strong immdependent
Judgement and cons:derable knowledge and experience to the
Board’s deliberations The Code as it applies to FTSE 350
companies stipulates that at least half of the Board, excluding
the Chairman, should compnse independent Non-Executive
Directors For all other compames the requirement is for two
Non-Executive Directors The Code defines independent Non-
Executive Directors as those who do not represent a sigmficant
shareholding or have material business with the Company In the
case of the Group, two Non-Executive Directors are independent
within this defimtion The Board considers that it 15 1n the
interests of the shareholders as a whole that there should be

two representatives of the Family Shareholder Council on the
Board serving as additional Non-Executive Directors The Board
behieves this overall composition of the Non-Executive element of
the Board to be appropniate given the needs of the business and
the expenence, background and calibre of the Non-Executive
Directors concerned and the role of the Non-Executive Directors
in constructively challenging and helping to develop the

Group strategy

The Code advocates the appointment of a separate Nominations
Commutiee comprising a majority of independent Non-
Executive Directors Currently the Board selects and convenes
Nomination Commttees on an ad hoc basis to deal with
specific nominations as necessary Members of the Board

and recruitment consultants, who are also used to assist the
process, suggest possible new Executive and Non-Executive
Directors Candidates are considered by all Directors

W henever a new Director is appointed to the Board, he or she
1s provided with a tailored induction and training programme
overseen by the Chairman

The Code as it applies to F'T'SE 350 companies recommends
that Non-Executive Dhrectors should be subject to annual
election with all other compames subject to the standard
three-year rotation process The Group has elected to continue
to follow the Articles of Association with all Directors retiring
by rotation and subject to re-election at least once every three
years Non-Executive Directors (excluding the Non-Executive
Chairman) can serve until the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting after they have completed nine years of
service or such other period as the Company agrees by specal
resolution At the first Annual General Meeting following their
appomntment, Directors must retire and seek re-election

There 1s an agreed procedure for Directors to take independent
professional advice, if necessary, at the Group’s expense This
1s 1n addition to the access which every Director has to the
Company Secretary The Company Secretary 1s charged by

the Board with ensuring that Board procedures are followed
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Membership of Board and Sub Commuttees

Share Board

Mamn Audit Rermencration Valuanon Penslons

Board Commuttce Committee Commuttee Commitice

Member  Attendance Member  Attendance Member  Attendance VMember  Altendance Member  Auendance

Number of meetings 6 3 2 2 2

Executive Directors

Robin Beacham yes 6 no 32 no - es 2 yes 2

Mehssa Potter yes 6 no 37 no - yes 2 yes 2
Non-Executive Directors

Peter Davies Chair 6 yes 3 yes 2 yes 2 Chair 2

Hugh Clark! yes 6 yes 3 Chair 2 yes 2 no -

Thomas (’Neill yes 6 yes 3 yes 2 yes 2 no -

Nigel Hall yes 6 Charr 3 yes 2 Chair 2 no -

Timothy Campbell’ yes 6 yes 3 ves 2 yes 2 no -

I Represeataties of the Family Sharcholder Council
2 Attended the meening ot the tnvriation of the Commutice

To enable the Board to function effectively and allow Directors
to discharge their responsibilities, full and timely access 1s
given to all relevant information In the case of Board meetings,
this consists of a comprehenstve set of papers, including
regular business progress reports and discussion documents
regarding specific matters The performance 15 contimually
monmitered by the Chairman Full details of Directors’
emoluments and a statement of the Group’s remuneration policy
1s set out 1n the Remuneration Report on pages 32 to 35 The
Non-Executive Directors receive a fee but do not participate in
any bonus or inceniive schemes or qualify for pension bhenefits

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has appouwnted the following Commiuttees to deal
with speaific aspects of the Group’s affairs The Committees
all have formal Terms of Reference that have been approved
by the Board These are held at the registered office They are
not — as recommended by the Code — published on the Group’s
website but the Board considers that this deviation from the
Code 1s appropniate given the private status of the company

A table showing attendees and chairs of each Committee 1s
shown above The Code advises that no single Non-Executive
Director should sit concurrently on all three of the principal
Board Commuttees Audit, Share Valuation and Remuneration
Due to the size of the Board, the Board does not believe that
this would be feasible or beneficial to the Group

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Committee has formal Terms of Reference covering all the
points recommended by the Code It meets at least three times
a year and its duties include the 1eview of internal controls and
risks throughout the Group, approving the Group’s accounting
policies and reviewing the annual and interim report and
actounts before submission to the Board The independence
and objectvity of the external auditors and the effectiveness

of the external audit process are also considered

It 15 a specific responsibnhity of the Audil Commutlee 1o ensute
that an appropriate relationship 1s maintained between the
Group and uts external auditors The Audit Committee controls
the provision of non-audit services to safeguard the external
audhtor’s objectimty and independence The split between audut
and non-audil fees for the year under review appears on page
53 The Executive Directors, external auditors and company
managers are inviled Lo attend the meetings of the Commuttee
as appropriate

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Committee meets at least twice a year and 1its responsibilities
are to approve the remuneration and other benefits of the
Executive Directors The Commullee also receives reports on the
terms and conditions of other senior Executives

SHARE VALUATION COMMITTEE

The Commtttee meets twice a year with representatives of the
valuers of the Company’s shares, together with other advisers,
to review the general trading background and other appropriate
mformahion to assist in valuing the shares

BOARD PENSIONS COMMITTEE

The Committee reviews and agrees any proposal for changes
10 pension schemes for employecs All significant changes are
recommended to the Board for approval

TAMILY SHAREHOLDERS' COUNCII

Fannly shareholders holding the majority of the ordinary shares
of the Company have formed a Council 10 aid commumcation
between shareholders and the Board For a summansed
breakdown of the share register please refer to page 40 The
Counecil assists 1n the implementation of corporate governance
policies and works with the Board in matters affecting the
marketability of shares The Council may nominate two persons
for appointment as Non-Executive Direclors of the Group
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
conbwmued

SITARETIOLDER RELATIONS

The Group places a great deal of importance on communication
wilh its shareholders and employees The full annual and
intertm report and accounts are available to all shareholders
and those that elect to do so may have access to a secure
online version All shareholders have the opportunity to ask
questions at the Company’s Annual General Meeting which all
Directors attend At the meeting the Chiefl Executive will give
a statement on the Group's performance during the financial
year Both the Chair of the Audit Committee and the Chair

of the Remuneration Commuttee are available for questions

at the Annual General Meeting The Chairman will advise
shareholders on proxy voting levels

AUDIT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board, through the Audit Committee, 1s responsible for
determining the nature and extent of sigmficant risks 1t 1s
willing to take 1n pursuance of the Group’s strategic objectives
It monitors the system of internal controls mamtained by the
Group and alsa has responsibility for carrying out a review of
the status of those 1nternal controls on an annual basis and
reporting that 1t has done so This system provides reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against matenal loss and includes
the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of proper accounting
records, the rehahlity of financial information, compliance with
appropriate legislation and mitigation of business nsks There 15
an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
sigmficant nisks faced by the Group

Key elements of the Group’s system of internal control are
as follows

— The Directors have put 1n place an organisation structure
with clearly defined lines of responsimlity and delegauon
of authority

— The Group has a comprehensive system of financial reporting

— The annual budget of each operating unit 1s approved by the
Executive Directors and the Board approves the overall
Group budget

— Performance agamnst budget 1s reviewed by the Board each
month and any significant variances are examuined Detailed
performance reviews are carried out by management

— There are clearly defined policies for capital expenditure
approval mcluding appropriate authorisation levels large
capital projects and company acquisitiens require Board
approval

— A number of functions, which operate within policies and
delegated authority hmits established by the Board, report
to the Board periodically These include treasury operations,
corporate laxation, penston fund and risk management

— Group and operational management are responsible for
the 1dentification, evaluation and management of key risks
applicable to their areas of the business 1n the UK this 1s
supported by the role of Risk Manager, and in North
America by the Director of Internal Controls

These risks may be associated with a variety of internal or
external events including control breakdowns, regulatory
requrements and natural catastrophe Each operating umt 1s
responsible for estabhishing and operating the required detailed
control procedures to manage these nisks

The systems detailed above have been in place for the year
under review and up to the date of approval of the finaneal
statements They are regularly reviewed by the Directors

and accord with the Turnbull guidance on internal control
There are two Internal Control Committees, one 1n the UK
and one 1n the US, winch are responsible for monitoring and
reviewing the internal control environment within the Group
on behalf of the Audit Committee A business-wide review of
wnternal controls and nsk management syslems 1s carried out
every year and reviewed by the Audit Commuttee on behalf of
the Board The review indicates areas 1n which the system of
mnternal control could be further improved Detailed reviews
of the most significant of these arcas are econducted during the
following year and the results reported to the Audit Commitiee
The Audt Commutiee have reviewed the need for an internal
audit function and consider that the current systems provide
adequate assurance at this ime This dewision will continue
to be regularly reviewed




HEALTH AND SAFETY SUMMARY

In 2011 the accident total across all UK & ROI Divisions was
down by nearly 4% This reduction was 1n the context of 2
nise 1n reportable aceidents which were up by 43% (from 25
to 40) Although 40 remains a very low figure 1n a business
with over ten thousand employees, the figure represents a 60%
increase on the 2010 total and reverses the steady downward
trend of the last few years Pressure on staff numbers and
very high stock levels in most stores during the second half
of the year both contributed to this increase Public areas
were not affected, acaidents being restricted to stockrooms
and associaled areas Action 1s ongoing to reduce the nisks of
accidents 1n these areas

There were only 8 reported cases of violence or abuse to retail
staff during the year, a reduction of 53% on the 2010 figure
No instances of such behaviour are acceptable but m the
current soco-economic climate the overall number s very low
considering the number of stores, the number of stafl and the
footfall in Clarks stores

2011 brought eperating cfficiencies with the combining of two
procedures the Fire Risk Assessments and the H&S Audits
This reduced the overall adommstrative burden for management
by about 30% Area & Regional Managers, Franchise Business
Managers and Heads Of Departments all attended training on
the fire precautions element wlueh 1s a legal requirement to
ensure competence to carry out the Fire Risk Assessments

37 visits to our stores were made by the enforcement
agencies and landlords in 2011, 1 fewer than the previous
year 'L here were no unmanageable 1ssues and 1n 6 cases
the only comments received were favourable The Mendip

Environmental Health Officer (EHO) spent a day 1eviewing all
Clarks systerns and procedures for health and safety She was
very complhimentary and made no recommendations for action

Our asbestos-management procedures were enhanced
considerably during the year to improve communication of
informatron, both Lo our stafl and to contractors working 1n the
retail premises

|
Across burope all Clarks-owned stores with Clarks’ employees ‘
are now nsk-assessed by the Area Managers 1n the same way |
as 1n the UK, though applying, where necessary, the local ‘
statutory requirements |
At the end of 2011 a plan was developed to assess the

compliance with health and safety law of the International

franchise business Compliance 1s the franchisee’ obligation

but, in the hight of the potential reputational risk associated

with non-comphiance, 8 monitoring scheme will be piloted

Using a ri=k consullancy with offices around the world and

planned for cormpletion 1 early 2012 the pilot survey will

provide information upon which the management plan going

forward will be based

CCNA continued with the staff training programme
Construction of the Hanover distribution centre commenced
Acuidents were up a little on the previous year but in direct
proportion with the higher staffl numbers employed
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CSR AI'PROACH

As a responsible business, our approach 1s 1o take
accountablity for the tmpacts that we have on people
and the planet

We launched our Corporate Secial Responsitnlity (CSR)
programme 1n 2007 and focused on wdentifying nsks
associaled with our products, establishing governance,
and managing, measuring and reporting impacts

With these foundations in place, 1n 2011 we developed a new
strategy focusing on integrating CSR into the way we work and
driving performance improvements This was developed by the
Responsibility team 1n consultation with the business and was
approved by the Board 1n September 2011, following agreement
from Melissa Potter and the Executive Leadership Team

Our vision 1s that ‘social responsibility 1s a key part of how we
make decisions and that we reflect the values of our consumers,
employees and shareholders in what we do and respond to what
they care about,’ and the approach is focused around three
ptllars of activity

— Our Ethies
~ Sustainability
— Community and Charnity

Details of our work 1n each of these areas are outlined on the
following pages The key stream of actvity for 2012 1s Qur

Ethics, focusing on demonstrating mlegnity 1n everything we
do at Clarks

GOVERNANCE
In 2011 we established Melissa Potter as the sponsor for CSR
at Clarks, with accountability for CSR at the Board level

Best pracuice in CSR governance shows that leading companies
are gathering external, independent views on direction, strategy
and performance from opinion formers, industry bodies and
others As we move forwards in 2012, we will consider how best
to reflect this 1n our approach to CSR governance at Clarks

Day to day coordination of CSR activily 1s undertaken by the
central Responsibihity team, who are accountable for developing
direction and strategy, defimng expectations on CSR topies,
supporting the business in implementing improvements, and
momitoring, measuring and reporting performance

Action for 2012 we will assess options for strategic
governance to provide an independent view on our strategy and
performance, and propose an implementation plan for 2013

COMMUNICATION

Active communication with Clarks’ stakeholders 15 a key part
of our approach to CSR In 2011 we made solid progress
towards this by idenufying and prioritising our stakeholders
and defimng appropnate ways of communicating with them
This confirmed employees, consumers and shareholders as

our key audiences We focused our attention on communication
with employees and shareholders 1n 2011 and will be
expanding this to include consumers in 2012

With employees, we integrated content into existing mnternal
communications, including Clarks’ Quarterly Business Review
and Foolpnint magazine, which 15 distnbuted to UK retar] stores

We are undertaking a survey with the members of the Famuly
Shareholder Council to understand how we can improve
communication with them We will shortly be reviewing the
results of this survey and incorporating the findings 1nto our
{uture plans

Action for 2012 more proactive, regular and accessible
communtcation with key audiences through our websites,
shareholder updates and the launch of a refreshed intranet site

MEASURING PERFORMANCE

We use a range of key performance indicators (KPls) to
measure performance across CSR topics In 2011 we reviewed
these to ensure that they were approptiate for our new strategy
Thus revealed opportunities to improve the KPlIs that we

use, and with the new strategy in place we are now in a solid
position to move forward with developing these i 2012

Action for 2012 we will define expectations for our
CSR priorities, and establish new indicators to measure
performance




PROGRESS UPDATE
In last year's report we identified the following actions for
201112

Deliver the core responsibilities of the Responsibihty team —
1dentifying, measuring, managing, and reporting our risks,
activities and performance

— We have conttnued to deliver these responsibilities, and
redefined the role of the team as part of developing a new
strategy

Buwild capacity in Clarks to ensure that CSR 15 embedded 1nto
the business’s ambition for the next five years This will include
our work on the Code of Business Ethies and reviewing the role
of the steering group

— We continue to raise awareness within the business to help
embed CSR into our operations Both the Code of Business
Ethies and governance review were completed as planned

Progress our GSR vision in Line with our Group strategy,
recogmsing consumer and employee expeclations

— During 2011 we developed a new CSR vision and strategy,
reflecting our ambion to be the world’s leading global shoe
brand and supporting us in putting the consumer ai the heart
of what we do and making Clarks an even better place to work

Propose 4 strategy to develop a consistent approach to business

engagement, building on the 1mtial activities undertaken 1n the
viermity of the UK Head Office in 2010

— Our progress on business engagement has been delayed due
to a_focus on the new strategy and wil be part of a future
Community and Charity programme

OUR ETHICS

Our ‘Laving our Values’ pullar provides the framework for
how we operate ethically and responsibly, and supports us
in building integrity into the way we work around the world
It 15 our lead stream of activity for 2012

ETHICS & INTEGRITY

In 2011 we developed Clarks’ Code of Business Ethics,
which forms a key part of our bedrock for promoting integnity
and commumcating our expectations on ethical decision
making to employees

The Code, which will be rolled out across Clarks’ operations
m 2012, outlines the global principles for the way we work at
Clarks and supports employees by giving them gindance to
make decisions that align with our ethical values

Alongside the vollout of the Code, we are launching a Speak
Up service, uperated by an independent third party This

will allow employees to report concerns about wrongdeing or
mappropriate activities of exther the Company or its employees
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on a confidential basis The service will be available globally,
1n the languages spoken by employees around the world and
will be accessible 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, via telephone,
web, email and post

In future reporting we wall mclude an update on the number
of concerns reported and actwns taken

Action for 2012 rollout our global Code of Business Ethics
and Speak Up service to all employees, supporting them in
making choices that ahgn with our ethical values

VENDOR AUDIT & COMPLIANCE

At Clarks we attach real importance to the welfare of our
employees and those employed by our supplhiers We are
commilted to mantaining our reputation for fair dealing
and retaining the confidence our consumers have 1n Clarks
We believe the work we provide, and our involvement 1n the
commumties 1n which we operate, 15 a force for good

Our Code of Practice sets the standards for the way we
expect our suppliers 10 operate 1n the production of all
Clarks’ products It requires comphance with all local legal
and regulalory requirements and supperts the core labour
principles of the International Labour Organization

At present our vendor audit programme covers directly sourced
footwear suppliers 1n China, Vietnam and Cambodia In 2011
these countries accounted for 85% of all pairs of footwear
sourced by Clarks Audits are carned out through the use of
our internal team and a 3rd party audil service provider

During 2011 we 1nereased the investment n our vendor audit
programme with appointment of a manager currently based
1n the Far East We have further enhanced the governance

of our audht work by establishing a Code of Practice Advisory
Beard which includes key senor stakeholders from across
the busmess

Action for 2012 reflecting changes 1n our sourcing strategy,
and as part of our plan to further develop our audit programme,
we will extend 1ts coverage to include direct footwear suppliers
mn other high nisk countries This will include India and
Central America through the recruitment of a new auditor i
India and extended use of our preferred 3rd party audit service
provider

PRODUCT TRACEABILITY

Our new CSR sirategy lughlhights tracealnlity in our supply
chain as a key part of ‘Laving our Values’ This responds 1o
increasing numbers of encuines from our custemers and
consumers on the provenance of materials and components
used 1n our products — a trend which we expect ta continue
in the future
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For leather, we continue 1o work with the Leather Working
Group (LWG), supply chain partners, peers and non
governmental orgarisations to understand the provenance of
sources we use and help ensure that leather used in Clarks’
products 1s not sourced from farms that contribute

16 deforestation

To support tracealnlity 1n our broader supply chain, we have
Joined The Forest Trust’s {TFT) Leather & Shoe Group, giving
us access to TFT’s sigmificant expernience 1n helping compames
develop tracealnlity systems and deliver responsible products

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT

We are continuing the work with our teams to make Clarks

an even better place to work as part of the business strategy

We have focused during 2011 on building our leadership
capability and skills throughout Clarks International We plan
to carry out another all employee survey towards the end of
2012 to give all our people the opportumty to tell us how things
are umproving

Our personal development review (PDR) process for employees
15 continuing to support the development of our people, with
over 63% of all eligible employees having an annual PDR

m 2011 Our aim to rell out e-PDR to selected mternational
locations during 2011 has been achieved, meaning that
elizible employees have this year completed an e-PDR m
those mternational locations

PRODUCT QUALITY

Clarks’ products are renowned worldwide for their quality,
style and durability, and our overall objective 1s to consistently
maintain the quality of, and qualities inherent 1n, our products
In 2011 Clarks did not make any product recalls from
consumers, maintaiming Clarks’ excellent record of providing
safe products

SUSTAINABILITY

Our *For Tomerrows World' ptllar aums to improve sustainability
practices throughout the hifecycle of our products, and across
our operations

OUR PRODUCTS
We aim to improve sustamability across our product range,
using our expertise 1n footwear and mnovation

Souremg Sustaimable Materals

We {focus our efforts on leather, as the most important and
prevalent raw matenal 1n our products Within the leather
supply chain, we recogmse that tanneries can present
significant risks to the environment due to the nature of
hazardous materials used in leather processing

As part of managing these risks, Clarks works with the
Leather Working Group (LWG), assessing environmental
performance of tannenes that we use, and promoting
sustainable environmental practices within the leather
industry Currently, approximately 60% of tanneries that
we use are assessed, and the results are used in deciding
which should be our preferred tannenes

We also take part 1n the annual Forest Footprint Disclosure
(FFD), which helps us understand the impacts that the leather
and timber/paper products that we purchase have on forests
worldwide We use the results of the disclosure to benchmark
our approach to managing our 1mpacts against a range of our
peers and to 1dentify areas where we can make 1mprovements

Improving Recyclability

Improving the recyclability of our foolwear supports us in
taking ownership for the legacy that our products leave cnce
their useful life 1s over and reflects our consumers’ expectations
and Clarks’ values and principles In 2011 we continued

to support research mto reducing the end of Iife impact of
footwear undertaken by the SMART Centre at Loughborough
Unversity, focusing on developing technology

to break down footwear and allow reuse or recyching

Action for 2012 we will begin to review the feasibility
of produeing products that can be recycled, starting with
assessing the practicaliies of sourcing recyclable materals
for footwear




Use of Chemncals

At Clarks we regard the health and wellbeing of our consumers
and employees, and all those who work 10 our supply chain,

as hewng of paramount importance Our Restricted Substances
Policy sets out our expectations on the use of potentially
hazardous chemicals 1n our products and we require our
suppliers to assure us that the levels these chemicals present
m the preduct are below the minimum levels required Ly
consumer protection legislation mn our worldwide markets

Encouraging Product Reuse

We support extending the life of shoes by encouraging
consumers to deposit old and worn shoes for reuse Shoes of
any size, brand and condition can be deposuted 1n ‘Shoe Biz’
collection bins 1n Clarks stores throughout the UK and Ireland,
and at Clarks HQ These shoes are then exported for resale
and reuse 1n developing markets In 2011, approxumately 158
tonnes of footwear was collected through Shoe Biz

OUR OPERATIONS
We aim to minimise the impact and cost of our operations
on the environment

Energy and Greenhouse Gas Enmssions

Clarks 1s required to report carbon dioxade (CO2) emissions
data to the Environment Agency 1n the UK as parl of the
Cathon Reduction Commitment {CRC) Energy Efficiency
Scheme This UK legislation supperts the Government’s anm
to reduce carbon emsstons by 80% by 2050 by encouraging
improvements 1n energy efficiency As part of the Scheme,
performance league tables are published annually, with the
aim of making energy efficiency a reputational 1ssue for the
companies neluded

Clarks was placed towards the middie of the first league
table, which was published 1n November 2011 and ranked
orgamsations based on their early achions 10 manage energy
use 1n the UK

At a global level we track CO2 enusstons from our direct use of
fuel and eleciricity purchased from the Gnd for our operstions
For 2011, this totalied approximately 6,130 tonnes of COZ 1n
the UK, a decrease of 10% from 2010/11, whilst electricity
and direct fuel use for our Hanover disinbution centre totalled
2,350 tonnes, a decrease of 15% from 2010/11

Action for 2012 we will expand the scope of our greenhouse
gas reporting to include our retail operations m the USA

Waste and Recycling

Recycling rates across our UK operations have remaned
stable during 2011/12 Our Distnibution Centres at Westway
m the UK and Hanover 1n the US continue to lead by example,
recycling approximately 98% and 93% respectively
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Across our UK retail stores, in 2011 approxamately 34% of
waste was recyeled or incinerated rather than being disposed
of to landhll We have identified opportunities to sigmficantly
improve thts and will be working to implement the required
changes 1n 2012

Our UK and CCNA Head Olfices recycled approximately 87%
and 67% of waste generated respectively, a small improvement
compared with that recycled 1n 2010/11

Action for 2012 we will expand the scope of our waste and
recycling reporting to include our retail operations 1n the USA

Transport

In 2011 we began measuring the CO2 emissions associated
with third party ocean freight transportation for Clarks
International, whieh totalled approximately 10,900 tonnes CO2

We undertook a travel survey at our UK HQ 1n 2011 to
understand how employees commute to work, and what
improvements would help them to travel more sustainably
This dentified that 509% of respondents would like o use
their car less for commuting 1o work

Action for 2012 we will develop a transport plan responding
to the results of the survey to encourage use of more sustainable
transport options

Environmental Compliance

We comply with environmental legislation wherever we operate,
and did not receive any fines or penalties during 2011-12
asgociated with environmental legislation

Resource Use
In autumn 2011, CCNA broke ground on a new ‘state of the art’
distribution centre at Hanover, Pennsylvania

The specifications of the buillding support 4 Gold certification
under the Leadership 1in Energy and Environmental Design
(LEED) counsel This will provide independent, third-party
venification that the bulding was designed and bwlt using
strategies aimed al achieving high performance 1n key areas of
human and environmental health sustaimable site development,
waler savings, encrgy cfficiency, materials selection and indoor
environmental quahty
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COMMUNITY AND CITARITY

Our ‘Giving Back’ pillar supports us in making a positive
contribution to charities and good causes, and m building
stronger commumities where we operate around the world

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

In 2011 we refined our approach to giving, reinforcing our global
parinership with UNICEF, our support of Soul of Africa, and the
important roles of corporate grving and fundrmising at a local level

The Group made donations of over £409,000 1n the form of cash
and value of goods donated during the 2011/12 reporting pertod

Clarks and UNICEF

For each pair of shoes collected 1n Shoe Biz bins in our stores
in the UK and Ireland, and at our UK HQ), Clarks donates
mortey to UNICEF for use 1n funding children’s education

projects In 2011 we raised approximately £108,000 for
UNICEF through Shoe Biz

To promote the Shoe Biz scheme further in our stores, we
created two ambassador roles 1in 2011 These individuals joined
members of our UK&I Retail Operations team on a trip to
Zamba to see the positive impacts of our donations firsthand

Soul of Africa

We continue our support of Soul of Africa, a chanty based 1n
South Africa that invests in traimng unemployed and unsk:lled
women to stitch shoes by hand Through the sale of Soul of
Afnea products mn our stores, and donation of a percentage of
the sales value of those sold 1n the UK, Soul of Afnica received
over £856,000 from Clarks in 2011/12

Triangle, Inc

In the USA, Clarks supports Triangle, Inc , helping people with
disabilities guin greater dignity, independence and economic
self-sufficiency In 2011, Clarks’ retall employees sold coupons
duning the hohiday season, generating over $765,000 (approx
£480,000) for Triangle, Inc

Race for Life

Clarks became an official partner of the Tesco and Cancer
Research UK’s Race for Lafe for 2011, the largest women only
Skem fundraising event in the UK Clarks produced two special
edition shoes 1n Race for Life coleurs, and donated 10% of the
relail price to Cancer Research UK for every pair sold, raising
a total of over £53,000

Give As You Earn

In the UK, our Human Resources team maintain a ‘Give as
You Earn’ scheme, which gives employees a sumple tax effective
way lo give to causes that they care about Through the scheme,
donations can be made to any national or local good causes
with charntable status

Action for 2012 we will promote our Give as You Earn
scheme to employees, with the aim of increasing its membership

Employee Fundrasing

Alongside Clarks’ corporate charitable giving, we are very
proud of the fundraising that our employees do for chanitable
causes that they believe in Events in 2011 have included a
gant yard sale at our US office 1n Newton 1n support of The
Clarks Compames Foundation, which raised close to $100,000
through the sale of thousands of items of footwear, furniture,
sporting goods and other goods

In the UK events including activity days, cake sales, raffles
and shoe sales have taken place to rmse funds for charities
mcluding Comic Relief, Children in Need, Soul of Africa and

many more

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

Our approach 1o communty investment focuses on crealing
lasting benefits and ongoing relationships and 1s managed at
a regonal level in the UK and USA

First Step Programme

Clarks’” USA based First Step Program provides six-month

paid internships to people with disahilities 1n our supportive
work environment It offers real work expenence, giving interns
confidence m their ahilities and supporting them on their path

to ganful employment lts mission 1s to create a positive and
successful work experience for people with abilities through
internships in a supportne professional office environment Eight
terms have been completed so far with a total of 15 graduates




Supporting Commumty Imtiatives

From October 2011 new legislation 1n Wales required
businesses to charge a minmimum of Sp for each single use
carner bag sold in the country, with the aum of encouraging
consumers 1o reuse bags and reduce the number disposed
of to landfili

Clarks 15 using the proceeds of the 5p charge to support
commumty projects and chanties focusing on skill bmlding
and environmental initiatives, via the Commumty Foundation
in Wales The proceeds of the first year {Oct 11 — Apnil 12) are
estimated 1o be 1n the region of £5,000

Employees at Clarks’ HQ m the UK have been supporting a
mentoring programme with Semerset Community Foundation
and Crispin School 1n Street — helping pupls through their
school career, giving them support and guidance to help them
succeed in whatever path they choose to follew 10 employees
are volunteering their ime to parlicipate in the programime

TRUSTS ASSOCIATED WITII C&J CLARK

Varwus trusts have been established dating back to 1908,

with the principal purpose of beneliung current and past
employees, their families and the communities 1n which

they hive The Clark Foundation, established 1n 1959, makes
granis for the benefit of communities 1n the arca of education,
commumty welfare, recreation and health Grants from The
Foundation are normally made to chariies or commumty
enterprises with a charitable purpose, in areas where Clarks
employees, or ex-employees, hive and/or benefit, and are mainly
for capital projects and sometimes for organisation start-up
costs The trust alse makes overseas grants in countnes where
a significant number of non employees make Clarks shoes
Recent examples of projects that have been supported include
a school technical block, a new youth club and support towards
a new scanner at a local hosputal

Other trusts speafically assist employees with grants towards
education costs, either for themselves or their children and they
also support employees and pensioners n the case of hardship
or critical events

In total, over 350 grants have been given across all trusts in
2011/12, and 1n excess of £500,000 of grants were dispensed
in the year to 31st January 2012
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REMUNERATION REPORT

Directors’ Emolumenis

Salary Performance-

Selaries Supplements rdlated bonuacs Rendfits lotal 2012 Tetal 2011

£°000 £°000 £000 £000 £°000 £°000
Executive Directors
Robin Beacham* 427 279 93 18 817 858
Melissa Potter™ 596 352 129 12 1,089 1,127
Non-Executise Directors
Peter Davies 173 - - - 173 168
Hugh Clark** 46 - - - 46 43
Thomas O'Neall 38 - - - 38 37
Nigel Hall*** 47 - - - 47 46
‘limathy Campbell 38 - - - 38 27

"eneﬁls ur;smgfmm em‘pio} ment b) the Company relate mﬂlnfy to !hepramswn ufcampan) cars and life assurance

* Robin Beacham and Mehssa Potter’s salary supplements compensate for restrictions introduced under the 1989 Fingnce Act on penstons prowided through the

Fund, please see page 33

** Hugh Clark’s salary includes £8k (2011 — £6k) for remuneration in hus capacuy as chair of the Remuneration Comnuites

¥ Nagel Holl's salary wncludes £9k (2011 - £8k) for remuneration w his capacity as chaer of the Audu Comumeitee

Long-term Incentive Plans

Pravision Provided Pad Provision
brought forward m the year 1 the year  carried forward
£°000 £'000 £°000 £°000

Executive Directors
Robin Beacham 2,458 359 (1,091) 1,726
Melissu Potter 2,392 232 (804) 1,820




REMUNERATIOX COMMITTEE (TIIE COMMITTEE)
‘The Committee compnses all of the Non-Executive Directors
and 15 chaired by Hugh Clark 'l he Commuttee 1s responsible
for approving an appropriate level of remuneration for the
Executive Directors within the principles the Commuttee

has determuned The Commutiee keeps uself fully informed

of all relevant developments and best practice i the field of
remuneration and seeks advice where appropriate from external
advisers and from the HR Director and the Company Secretary

REMUNERATION I’'OLICY

It 15 the policy of the Committee to consider and approve
remuneration packages and other contractual terms that
attract, retain and motivate managers of the cahibre required
to successfully manage an international Group of the size and
complexity of C&J Clark Lumted In doing so the Committee
aims to ensure that such packages are balanced, but not
excessive, and that incentive schemes are structured so that
they reflect the levels generally paid o such lxecutives

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

Emoluments, compensation and long-term mnecentives 1n respect
of qualifymmg services of each person who served as a Director
during the year are listed 1in the two tables on page 32
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INFORMATION SUBJECT TO AUDIT
'The auditors are required to report on the information in the
followmng sections of the report

— Directors’ remuneration, including descriptions of the
long-term 1ncentives schemes

— Defined henefit pension schemes

— Directors’ pension entitlements

THE CODE

The Board considers that they have complied with the UK
Corporate Governance Code provisions relating to Directors’
remuneration and have followed the provisions of Schedule A
to the UK Corporate Governance Code

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

It 18 the policy of C&J Clark Limited to 15sue all new Executive
Dhirectors with twelve month rolling service cantracts There are
no provisions 1n Directors’ service contracts for compensation
11 respedt of early termination of a contract There 1s however,
an obligation to pay for any notice peniod waived by the
Company All Executive Directors’ service contracts require
the Company te give 12 months’ notice to terminate the
contracts until the age of 60, when no notice period 15 required
Dates of service contracts for Director’s who have served during
the year are as follows

— Robin Beacham 1st July 2001
— Melissa Potter 1st June 1999

SALARIES AND BENEFITS

Salaries and benefits for Executive Directors are reviewed
annually and external advice taken as appropriate Directors’
remuneration packages are benchmarked against compames of
a stmilar size and complexity

PERFORMANCE RELATED BONUSES

Melissa Potter and Robin Beacham participate 1n an annual
bonus scheme dependent on the financial performance of the
Group compared with budget Awards are made on a shding
scale up to 60% of salary, based on {ootwear profits less 15%
notional interest on a notional debt amount of 40% of Group
average operaling capital For achievement of 30% of budgeted
footwear profits less notional 1nterest, a bonus of 15% of salary
1s payable No bonus 1s payable 1f the result 1s lower The bonus
payable imcreases by 1 percentage point for every additional
£884,000 by which the actual result exceeds the minimum
performance target For achievement of the budgeted footwear
profits less notional interest, a bonus of 309% of salary 1s
payable Thereafier, a 1% increase m honus award 1s payable
for every addiional £663,000 increase 1 the profit after
noticnal interest up to the maximum 60% of salary at a result
15% above budget The target 1s denved from the published
budget of the Group for the year This method has been 1n use
for filteen years and was chosen as the most consistent measure
of underlying trading growth 1n the business icluding the
effect of changes in operating capilal employed within

the Group
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REMUNERATION REPORT
continued

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

Robin Beacham and Melissa Potter are participants m this
scheme which provides & benefit of up to 2 maximum of 3 5
umes annual salary dependent on the financial performance
of the Group or Clarks International compared with the five
year strategic plan, over a three year period Rebin Beacham
participates 1n a scheme based on Group profit after tax
Melissa Potter participates in a scheme based 25% on Group
profit after tax and 75% on Clarks International profits for the
three year period commenung 1st February 2009 and based
on Group profit after tax for the three year perods commencing
1st February 2010 onwards The maximum award 1s payable
if actual profits exceed 120% of strategic plan profits over

the three year performance period No award 1s payableof
actual profits aie less than 85% of strategic plan profits For
profit performance exactly 1n line with the strategic plan over
the performance period, each of the Executive Directors will
recewve & paynient of 1 25 times annual salary

Performance periods, each of a three year duration, have
commenced annually on Ist February since 2007 The therd
performance period came to an end on 31st January 2012 and
awards relating to this performance period are made i March
There are three performance periods runnming concurrently
commencing 1st February 2010, 1st February 2011 and

1st February 2012

Semor managers and selecled managers of Clarks International
and Clarks Companies North America are members of 2
scheme which provides a henefit dependent on the financial
performance of each division compared with the five year
strategic plan, over a three year pertod The maximum benefit

payable 1s 2 5 imes salary for semor managers and 1 5 times
salary for managers For profit performance exactly in Line
with the strategic plan over the performance period, senior
managers will recewve a payment of 1 0 times annual sulary
and managers 0 75 himes annual salary The shding scale 1s
adjusted accordingly Performance periods, each of a three
year duration, have commenced annually on 1st February
smce 2007 The third performance period came to an end on

31st January 2012 and awards relating to this scheme are made

in March There are three schemes running concurrently for
the three year periods commencing Ist February 2010,
1st February 2011 and 1st February 2012

SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN

During the year the Group operated a Share lncentive Plan
Under the plan, ehgible employees may save up to 1% of their
gross earmngs which will be used to purchase ordimary shares
in the Company One matching (free) share will be allocated
for every partnership share purchased by an employee These
shares rank for dividend and are held 1n trust for a mummum
of three years before being transferred to the employee

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN

Total Shareholder Return (TSR) 15 a performance measure
based on the market value of an 1investment 1n shares of a
company over a given period, in this case, five years TSR
assumes that all dividends are re-invested and any nghts
1ssues taken up It 15 assumed that the buyback proceeds
were also re-invested 1n shares The TSR graph 1s based

on an 1mtial purchase of 100 shares 1n C&J Clark Limited
on Ist February 2007 Comparnson shown 1s against the
movements 1n the FTSE 250 share index as the market
capitalisation, based on the share price calculated bi-unnually
by PricewaterhouseCoopers, would make C&)J Clark Linuted
a FTSE 250 company

TSR vs FTSE 250 TSR  —
FTSE 250 e
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'The comparison shows C&J Clark Limited outperforms the
market trend from 2007 to 2012 The TSR shows steady growth
whilst the FTSE 250 shows a decline from 2007 to 2009,
returming 1o the levels experienced at the beginning of the five
year pertod by 2011 At 31st January 2012 the 'SR over the
previous five years 15 more than the return given by the FTSE
250 1f £100 had been invested 1n C&)J) Clark Limited shares
1n 2007 1t would now be worth £159, whereas the seme amount
imvesled 1in FTSE 250 compames over the same period would
now, on average, be worth £95

TSR 15 a performance measure used predominantly for pubhcly
traded companies and thus may not be an entirely reliable
measure for 4 private company like C&J Clark Limited The
external share valuation conducted by PricewaterhouseCoupers
assumes a willing buyer and seller, 15 based on & mimimal
volume of transactions, and does not fully take account of
external market forces

DIRECTORS’ PENSION ENTITLEMENTS

Melissa Potter and Robin Beacham participate in the C&J
Clark Pension Fund (‘the Fund’) The Fund 1s contributory and
15 governed by an independent trust Their normal retirement
age under the Fund 18 60 and they acerue relirement benefits
at the rate of one fortieth of pensionable pay for each year of
pensionable service, subject to certain Fund himits

Early retirement is permitted at the age of 55, subject to an
actuanal reduction to the accrued pension of up to 14%

The Fund continues to apply the himits introduced under the
1989 Finance Act applicable to members joining HMRC
approved schemes on or after 1st June 1989

For death before retirement, a capital sum equal to four times
salary 1s payable A spouse’s penston is also payable and this
ts hmted by the HMRC Earnings Cap restrniction For death
1n retirement, a spouse’s pension of 50% of the member’s
pre-commutation pension 1s payable In the event of death
after leaving service but prior to commencement of pension,
a spouse’s pension of 50% of the accrued preserved pension
1s payable 1n all circumstances, children’s allowances are
also payable up to the age of 18 Substantial protection 1s
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also offered 1n the event of serious 111 healih Posi-retirement
penston inereases are guaranteed at the rate of price inflation
subject to a himit of 8 5% per annum, cempound between the
date of retirement and each annual pension review

In addition the Greup has awarded salary supplements 1o
reflect the restrictions placed on pensions provided through
the Fund by the continued appheation of limits introduced
under the 1989 Finance Act

The salary supplements for Melissa Potter and Robin Beacham
are included in the Directors’ emoluments table on page 32

The assumptions underlying the transfer values are market
dependent and therefore change from year to year In addition
the transfer values for Melissa Potter and Robin Beacham make
some allowance for the change n the basis of indexation 1n
deferment from RPI to CP1

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of the Chairman 1s determined by the
Committee The Executive Directors determine remuneration
of the other Non-Executive Directors of the Company
Remuneration consists of fees for their services 1n connection
with Board and Board committee meetings They do not have
contracts of service and must retire afler nine years’ service or
such other perod as the Company agrees by special reselution
They are not eligible for pension scheme membership They do
not participate in the Group’s bonus scheme or other incentive
schemes

This report will be laid before the shareholders for approval at
the Annual General Meeting to be held on 4th May 2012

On behalf of the Board

ITUGII CLARK
Chaur of the Remuneration Committee

23rd March 2012

Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

Accrued Accrued Durectors
Pensionable pension  Increasen penston T'tansfer Iransfer  contnbutions Increase in
Ageal service Lo benefit at accrued benefit at value at valucat fortheyearte transfer value
31january  3lstJanvary  lst February pension  3lstJaneary  lst bcbevary  3lstJanuary 31 January  less Direclors
2012 2012 2011 benefits 2012 2011 2012 2012 coninbutions
Years Years £000  £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £000
Robin Beacham* 52 22 82 4 86 1,244 1,676 10 422
Melissa Potter* 44 12 82 4 86 890 1,202 10 302

* Indwrduals’ benefits under the Group’s UK Pension Fund are subject to an Farnings Cap (£129,600 at 31st Jannary 2012)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MELISSA POTTER joined the Group as a graduate in
1988 and carried out various management roles before
becoming Managing Director of the UK Diwvision in 2002
She was appointed to the Board as Managing Director,
Clarks International ¢n 215t June 2006 and was appoinled
Chief Executive on 1st Apnl 2010

ROBIN BEACITAM joined the Group in 1990 from Arthur
Andersen and carried out a number of financial management
roles before becoming Financial Controller in 1996 He was
appounted to the Board as Finance Director on 28th June 2001

PETER DAVIES was appointed a Non-Executive Director
on st September 2005 and became Non-Executive Chairman
on 5th May 2006 He has more than 20 years’ expertence 1n
UK and International retanl, most recently as Chiefl Executive
of Rubicon Retail Ltd Whalst Clarks 1s his main role, Peter
15 also Non-Executive Chairman of Whistles Holdings Ltd,

a Non-Executive Director of First Friday Lid and Chairman
of Mint Velvet LLP and Onyx Retail Ltd

SUSAN MALT1IOUSE re-joined the Group as Company
Secretary and Selicitor in April 2011, having previously worked
as n-house counsel from 1991 to 2005 She is & commercial
solicitor and before her appointment headed the corporate and
commercial department of Veale Wasbrough Vizards




TIMOTHY CAMPBELL was appminted as a Non-Executive
Director on 6th May 2010 He was a member of the Famly
Shareholder council from 2007 until joining the Board He s
Managing Director of Maymont Capital Advisors AG, where he
advises venture capital and private equity funds on 1nvestments
i emerging maikets

TIHHOMAS J O’NEILL was appointed to the Board as an
independent Non-Executive Director on 10th May 2004

He has more than 25 years’ experience 1n international
retailing and brand management, most recently as Chiel
Executive and Director of Harry Winston, Inc where he also
concurrently held the position of President and Director of
Harry Winston Diamond Corporation Prior to Harry Winston,
he was Worldwide President of Burberry, Divisional President
and Chief Executive at LVMH and, Executive Vice-President
of Tiffany & Company
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NIGEL ITALL was appointed as an independent Non-
Executive Director on 1st March 2006 and 1s Chayrman of
the Audit Commuttee and of the Share Valuation Commattee
of the Board Nigel1s a chartered accountant who qualified
with Price Waterhouse before joiming the fashion retailer
The Burton Group ple (renamed Arcadia Group ple 1n 1998)
where he served as Finance Director from 1997 unul 2003
Nigel 15 also the Non-Executive Chairman of Countrywide
Farmers plc and a Non-Executive Director of Umite Group ple

HUGH CLARK was appointed as a Non-Executive Director
on Oth May 2005 He was a member of the Famly Shareholder
Council from its inception m 1993 until jouung the Board

He joined Clarks as a graduate in 1985 and spent eleven years
m the business before joining Rohan in 1996 He became a
Dhirector 1n 1997 and was Managing Dhrector of Rohan from
2001 unti} 2007 and 1s currently a Director of Quba Clothing
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DIRECTORS REPORT

The Durectors present their annual report and the audited
financal statements for the year ended 31st January 2012

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Company and s related
subsicharies are worldwide shoe retathing and wholesahing, and
related trades Further details of the operahons and the trading
results are sel out on pages 8 to 19 The profil after tax of the
Group for the year was £77 5m A List of the major overseas
subsidiaries of the Company may be found on page 70

A review of the Group’s performance during the year, expected
future developments and principal nsks and uncertainties
facing the Group are contained 1n the Chairman’s Statement,
the Chief Executive’s Report and the Financial Review The
headings below, as required by a business review, are cross-
referred to these statements

Scene selling

Chief Executive’s Report pages 10 1o 15
Objectives of the Group

Chief Executive’s Report pages 10 to 15
Strategy

Chief Executive’s Reporl pages 11 to 15
Risks and uncertainhies

Chief Executive’s Report pages 14 to 15
Measurement

Cheef Execunive’s Report pages 10 10 15
Performance

Chief Executive’s Report pages 10 to 15
Forward looking

Chief Executive’s Report pages 14 to 15

DIRECTORS

The current Directors of the Group are hsted on pages 38
and 39 There were no changes 1o the composition of the
Board during the year, although we appointed Stella David
as a Non-Executive Director on 1 March 2012

In accordance with the Company’s Memorandum and Arucles,
Robin Beacham and Nigel Hall retire by rotation at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting Both seek re-election
Stella David, who has been appomted since the last Annual
General Meeting, also retires and seeks re-election

Details of the Directors’ service contracts are given 1n the
Remuneration Report on pages 32 te 35

SITARE REGISTER
As at 31 January 2012 the compositon of the share register of
C&)J Clark Limied was

Family 84 2%
Institutions 35%
Share Schemes 09%
‘Irusts associated with C&)J Clark Limited 4 1%
Employees 7 3%
"Total 100 0%

SHARE BUYBACK
There were no share buybacks in the year

FIXED ASSETS
in the opinion of the Directors, the market value of land, on an
exising use basis, 18 not significantly different to book value

EMPLOYEES

The Board behieves that the principle of equality of treatment
and opportumty 15 of fundamental importance Its long held
aim 15 to provide just and fair treatment for all employees

In accordance with this policy, the only personal aitributes
which will be taken 1nto account 1n making decisions about
employees are those which relate directly to actual or
potential performance Throughout the Group, procedures for
consultation with, and the involvement of, employees are 1n
operation, as appropriate to the circumstances of the individual
businesses [nformation on matters of concern to employees 15
given through a varety of presentauons, brefings, bulleting
and reports

TIHE ENVIRONMENT

The Group recogmses that care and concern for the
environment and the community are a fundamental part

of the Group’s strategy [t 1s the Group’s 1ntention 1o strive
continuously to minimise any adverse environmental 1mpact of
business acuvities, to comply with all relevant environmental
legislation and to promote a caring athtude to the environment
amongst 1ts employees A statement of commutment from the
Group 1n its environmental policy 1s shown on pages 26 to 31




DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

The interests of the Directors 1n the share capital of the Company
are shown it the table below A hst of transactions with related
parties 1s given in note 22 1o the financial statements There were
no changes in Direclors’ share mierests between the end of the
year and 13th March 2012 (being one month before the date of
the notice of the Annual General Meeting)

DONATIONS
Donations for chantable purposes made by the Group during
the year amounted to £0 4m (2011 — £0 4m) No donations

were made for political purposes

CREDITOR PAYMENT POLICY

The Group’s policy 15 to use standard payment terms, payment
being at the end of the moenth following the invoice date, except
for goods for resale which are generally 30 days For all trade
creditors it 1s the Group’s polwy to

— settle terms of payment with suppliers,

— ensure that supphers are aware of the terms of payment,
— make every effort to meet agreed payment dales provided
that the agreed terms and conditions have been met by

the supphers

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
‘The Group remains commutted to the highest standards of
corporate governance A report 1s set out on pages 22 to 24

GOING CONCERN

After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group and the Company have adequate
resources to continue n operational existence for the
foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements
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DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES

So far as the Directors are aware, there 1s no relevant audit
mformation (information needed by the Group’s auditors 1n
connectioh with preparing their report) of which the Group’s
auditors are unaware and each Director has taken all the
steps that they ought to have taken as a Director in order to
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information
and 1o estabhish that the Group’s auditors are aware of that
information

AUDITORS

In accordance with Section 485 of the Companies Act 2006,
the auditors will be deemed to be re-appointed and KPMG LLP
will therefore remain 1n office

By Order of the Board

SUSAN MALTHOUSE z %W

Company Secretary

23rd March 2012

Directors' Interests

At 3lst Januney 2012 AL 31st Japuary 2011

Ordinary Executive Ordinary kxceutive

Sharcs* Share Trust** Shares* Share Trusi**

Robin Beacham 1,026 - 1,026 -
Melissa Potter 2,228 - 2,003 -
Peter Davies 3,500 - 3,500 —
Hugh Clark 323,172 - 323,172 -
Thomas (’Nexl! - - - -
Nigel Hall 3,000 - 3,000 -
‘limothy Campbell 813,720 - 812,838 -

* The shareholdings shown do not, \n every case, represent the beneficial interests held
** The Erecutie Directors, as potential beneficiartes under the Company’s share schemes, are deemed 16 be interested in unallocated C8.1 Clark Limued
ordinary shares held by the C&J Clark Executive Share Trust These do not represent beneficialinzerests At 31st January 2012 there were no shares held by the

Triest (201 1-mel)
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITIES
IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report
and the financial stalements in accordance with apphcable
law and regulauons

Company law requires the Directors 1o prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law the
Directors have elected Lo prepare the financial statements

in accordance with UK accounting standards and apphicable
law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

The Group and Parent Company firancial statements are
required by law to give a true and fair view of the state

of affairs of the Company and the Group as at the end of

the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Group for
that period

[n prepaning these finaneial statements, the Directors are

required to

~ select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently,

— make judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

— state whether applicable UK accounting standards have
been followed, subject 1o any material departures disclosed
and explained 1n the financial statements, and

— prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it 15 inappropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any Lime the
financial position of the Company and enahle them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Companies

Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such
steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets
of the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other
wregulanties

The Directors have decided to prepare voluntanly a Directors’
Remuneration Report 1n accordance with Section 421 to the
Companies Act 2006, as 1f those requirements were to apply
to the Company The Directors have also decided to prepare
voluntarily a Corporate Governance statement as 1f the
Company were required to comply with the Listing Rules of
the Finanaal Services Authonty in relation to those matters




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT

We have audited the financial statements of C&J Clark Limited

for the year ended 31 January 2012 set out on pages 46 to 70
The financial reporting framework that has been applied

in therr preparation 1s applicable law and UK Accounting
Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

In addition to cur audit of the financial statements, the
[hrectors have engaged us 1o audit the mformation 1n the
Dhrectors’ Remuneration Report that 1s described as having
been audited, which the Directors have decided to prepare

{(in addhtien to that required to be prepared) as if the company

were required to comply with the requirements of Schedule
8 to The Large and Medium-stzed Compames and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (SI 2008 No 410)
made under the Companies Act 2006

Thus report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body,
in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act

2006 and, 1n relation to the Directors’ Remuneration Report,
on terms that have been agreed Cur audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members
those maiters we are required to state 1o them m an auditor’s
report and, m respect of the separate opimion 1n relation to
the Directors’ Remuneration Report, those matters we have
agreed to state to them n our report, and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibulity to anyone other than the company and

the company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this

report, or for the opimons we have formed

RESPECTIVE RESI'ONSIBILITIES

OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibihties
Statement set oul on page 42, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being

satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibihity
15 lo audit, and express an opinion on, the financial statements
m accordance with apphcable law and International Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us te

comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB') Ethical
Standards for Auditors

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A deseription of the scope of an audut of financial statements

15 provided on the APB’s website at www frc org uk/apb/scope/

private cfm

OPINTON ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I our opimion the finaneial statements

— giwve a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of
the parent company’s affairs as at 31 January 2012 and of
the Group’s profit for the year then ended,

— have been properly prepared 1n accordance with UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

- have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006

OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED
BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006 AND UNDER
THE TERMS OF OUR ENGAGEMENT

[n our opinion

— the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report which
we were engaged to audit has been properly prepared
accordance with Schedule 8 to The Large and Medium-
Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports}
Regulations 2008 made under the Companies Act 2006,

as 1if those requirements were to apply to the company, and

— the mnformation given in the Dhirectors’ Report for the
financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the finaneaial statements

MATTERS ON WIHICII WE ARE REQUIRED
TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters

where the Companies Act 2006 and the terms of our
engagement require us to report 1o you if, in our opinion

— adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us, or
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the parent company financial statements and the part of
the Directors” Remuneration Report which we were engaged

to audit are not 1n agreement with the accounting records
and returns, or

- certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified
by law are not made, or

~ we have not received all the information and explanations

e regure fo

C CAMPBELL-ORDE
(SENIOR STATUTORY AUDI'TOR)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP,
Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
100 Temple Street
Bristol
BS1 6AG

23rd March 2012
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GROUP PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

For the year ended 31st January 2012

Before Hefore
exceptional Excepuonal exceptional k xceptional
tems JIey TS Fotal items items Total
2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m

Tarnover 1{b) 1,399.7 - 1,399.7 1,281 3 - 1,281 3
Less Jownt Venture 1(b) (1.6) - (1.6) - - -
Group Turnover 1(b) 1,398 1 - 1,398.1 1,281 3 - 1,281 3
Costs less other income 2(a) (1,276 0) - 1.276.0) (1,153 9) - (1,153 9)

1221 - 122.1 1274 - 1274
Long-term incentive schemes 2(u) (6.3) - (6.3) (16 5) - (16 5)
Group Opcerating pofit 2) 1158 - 115.8 1169 - 1109
Share of Operating Loss 1n Joint Venture  2(f) (0.5) - (0.5) (01) - (o1
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 3(a) - 0.2 02 - 39 39
Profit an disposal of land held for resale  3(h) - - - - 12 12
Profit before mterest 115.3 0.2 115.5 110 8 51 1159
Other net finance costs 4 {9.4) - (9.4) (72) - (72)
Profit hefore taxation 165.9 02 106.1 103.6 51 1087
Taxation 5 (28.6) - (28 6) (30.8) (08) (316)
Profit for the financial year 77.3 02 77.5 728 43 771
Earmings per ordinary share 7 130 2p 0.3p 130.5p 122 4p 72p 129 6p

The notes on puges 52 to 70 form part of these financial sgatements
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BALANCE SHEETS

As at 31st January 2012

Croup Crocp Cowmpany Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Notes £m £m £m £m
Fixed assels
Intang:ble assets 8 0.5 05 - -
Tangible assets 9(a) 2277 1967 - -
[nvestments
Jomnt Ventures — Share of Gross Assets 2.2 05 - -
— Share of Gross Liabihnes (0.8) (0 3) - -
— Net Investment 1.4 02 - -
Other 10 1.9 2.9 78.5 83
231.5 200 3 78.5 783
Current assels
Stock 1n 353.0 3235 - -
Debtors 12 152.2 1495 3329 243 3
Cash at bank and 1n hand 108 9 105 8 33.1 309
614 1 578 8 366.0 274 2
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year 13 2319 (251 3) (245.5) (221 0)
Net current assets 3822 3275 120.5 532
Total assels less current halulities 613.7 5278 199.0 1315
Credhtors — amounts falling due alter more than one year 14 (83.1) 44.0) (70.5) (31 6)
Provisions for hallities and charges 15 (27.1) 287 - -
Net assets excluding pension liability 503 5 4551 128 5 999
Pension habihty 21 (79.3) (88 2) - -
Net assets mmcluding pension liabihty 424 2 3669 128 5 999
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 17 59 4 594 59.4 594
Share premium account 18 0.8 04 0.8 04
Capital redemption reserve 18 18.1 181 18.1 181
Merger reserve 18 15.1 151 - -
Profit and loss account 18 330.8 2739 50.2 220
Equity shareholders® funds 424.2 366 9 128.5 999

The notes on pages 52 10 70 form pare of these financial statementa

The financial statements gf C& ] Clark Limited, registered number 3314066, were approved by the Board of Directors and signed
on their behalf on 23rd ch 2012

<
PETER DAVIES AN e

ROBIN BEACIIAM M‘A
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GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31st January 2012

2012 201
Notes £m £m

Cash flow from operating activihes 23 68.0 40 3
Returns on investments and servicing of finance 24.(a) (14) (04)
Taxation (25.4) (329)
Capital expendiure and financial investment 24.(b) (48.2) (41 4)

(7.0) (34 4)
Equity dinidends pad (21.7) (23 8)
Net cash outllow before financing (28.7) (58 2)
Financing 24(c) 29.3 400
Increase/{(decrease) in cash in the year 06 (18 2)
RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT
IN NET BORROWINGS
For the year ended 31st Janmary 2012

2012 2011

Notes £m £m

Increase/(decrease) in cash in the year 0.6 (18 2)
Cash flow from increase i debt 24(.) (28.9) (41 6)
Change in net borrowings resulting from cash flows (28.3) {59 8)
Currency translation adjustments 0.2 10
Increase in net borrowings 1n the year (28.1) (58 8)
Opening net cash 18.6 774
Closing net (borrowings)/cash 25 {9.5) 186

The notes on pages 52 to 70 form part of these financial siatements




GROUP STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

For the year ended 31st January 2012

2012 2011
£m £m
Profit for the financial year 77.5 771
Currency translation adjustments 22 20)
Actuanial loss on pension schemes (net of deferred taxation) (1.3) (55)
Corporation tax credit ansing on pension contributions in excess of current year pension charge (3.7) (77
Related deferred tax charge on pension contributions in excess of current year pension charge 3.7 77
Total recogmized gains and losse s arising during the financial period 78.4 696
RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS
For the year ended 31st January 2012
Group Group Compnany Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Total recognised gains and losses ansing during the financial year 78.4 69 6 49.7 355
Dividends pad (21.7) (23 8) (21.7) (23 8)
Share-based payment 0.2 02 0.2 02
Allotment of shares 0.4 - 0.4 -
Share buyback - (16) - (16)
Net increase in equuy shareholders’ funds during the finanaal penod 57.3 44 4 28.6 103
Opening equity shareholders’ funds 366.9 322 5 99.9 896
Closing equity sharcholders’ funds 424.2 3669 128.5 999
GROUP NOTE OF HISTORICAL COST PROFITS AND LOSSES
For the year ended 31st January 2012
2012 2011
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 106.1 108 7
Difference between historical cost depreciation
charge and actual depreciation charge for the year - -
Historical cost profit on ordinary activities before taxation 106.1 1087
Historieal cost profit for the year retamned after taxahon 7.5 771

The notes on pages 52 to 70 form part of these financial statements
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention as modified to include the revaluation
of freehold and long leasehold land and bulldings and 1in
accordance with applicable accounting standards

The finaneial statements for the Company and all materal
subsidianes are drawn up to the nearest Saturday to the
31st January, in line wath retail industry practice The year
to 3lst January 2012 comprises 52 weeks (2011 — 52 weeks)

These financial statements have been prepared under the
going concern basis as discussed i the Dhrectors’ Report

The following accounting policies have been appled
consistently throughout the year There have been no changes
n accounting policies since last year

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The Group linancial statements compnse a consolidation of

the finanaial statements of the parent company and all of 1ts
substdianes, together with the Group’s share of the results of its
Jount ventures The princpal subsidiaries are Listed on page 70

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
Investments in subsidiary companies are stated at cost less
provisions for any impairment in value

JOINT VENTURES

A joini venture 1s an undertaking 1n which the Group has a
long-term 1nterest and over which it exercises joint control
The Group’s share of the profits less losses of joint ventures

15 included 1n the conschidated profit and loss account and its
interest 1n their net assets, 1s included 1n 1nvestments 1n the
consolidated balance sheet

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Sales during the normal course of business are recogmsed
on legal transfer of title, and are accounted for net of sales
discounts, sales taxes and returned goods

Profits on sales of property are recogmsed on completion,
unless the exchange of contraets 15 unconditional 1n which
case the profit 1s recognised at that stage Rental income 1s
accounted for on a receivable basis

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

Assets and lrabilities denominated 1n foreign currencies are

translated nlo sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the

balance sheet date Profit and losses of oveiseas subsidiaries
are translated into sterling at average rates of exchange

Exchange differences ansing on the retranslation of the
opening net assets of overseas subsidiaries, less exchange
differences arising on related foreign currency borrowings,
are laken to reserves and disclosed 1n the Group Statement
of Total Recogmised Gains and Losses on page 49, together
with any related tax charges or credits All other exchange
differences are recogmised 1 the Profit and Loss Account

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group uses financial instruments to manage 1ts exposure

to fluctudtions i foreign currency exchange rates Currently

the only mstruments used are forward currency contracts and
currency oplion contracts Gains and losses an forward contracts
and oplions, entered 1nto as hedges of future purchases and
sales denominated in foreign currency, are carried forward and
taken 1o the Profit and YLoss Account on maturity to match the
underlying transactions The Group has taken advantage of the
exemption available for short-term debtors and creditors

FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

Depreciation i1s provided on all tangible fixed assets, excepting
freehold land and assets 1n the course of construction, 1n order to
write off the original cost, less estimated reswdual value, evenly
over the average expected useful life of the asset as follows

Freehold and long leasehold buildings
Short leasehald property

50 years

lower of 14 years

or the hife of the

lease or the period

to the first rent review

Plant, machinery and fixtures 3 — 20 years
Motor vehicles 3 -5 years
Computer hardware 3 — 10 years




CAPITALISATION OF SOFTWARE COSTS

Software costs are capitahised and amorused over three to ten
years Where appropriate these costs include elements of fees
paid to external consultants

LEASED ASSETS

Fixed assets held under finance leases have been capialised
and depreciated over their expected useful ives The related
lease obligations have been 1ncluded 1n creditors The finance
charges have been charged to the Profit and Loss Account over
the primary period of the lease Operating lease rentals have
been charged to the Profit and Loss Account as mcurred

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Trademarks are stated at purchase cost and amortised over
a perwod of 20 years

When a franchisee enters into an agreement with the Group to
operate an nternational franchise store, under the terms of the
agreement the Group may pay the franchisee a contribution

as conswderation for agreeng to the terms of the agreement

in respect of the opening and operation of the store, including
a mmimum purchasing requirement This contribution 15
capitalised as a franchise licence and the cost 15 amortised
over the length of the agreement which 1s 5 years

LEASE INCENTIVES

Where the Group receives an incentive to take on a property
lease by way of a capital contnibution or a discounted or free
rental period, the henefit 1s spread over the earlier of the period
to the first rent review or to the end of the lease as a reduction
in rental costs

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
All expenditure on research and development 1s written off 1n
the year in which it 1s incurred

STOCK
Stock has been stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value

DEFERRED TAXATION

Full provision 15 made for deferred tax assets and Liabilities
ansing from ming differences between the recogmition

of gains and losses 1n the financial statements and 1their
recognition 1n a tax computation Deferred tax 1s not recogmsed
on permanent differences such as revaluation gains, gains
rolied over into new assets, and unremitted overseas earmings

PENSION COSTS

The cost of providing pension benefits has been charged to the
Profit and Loss Account in accordance with the requirements
of FRS 17 ‘Retirement Benefits’

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group operates an All Employee Share Incentive Plan
(S1P) Under the scheme employees are given a free matching
share for each partnership share purchased at market value
This has been accounted for under FRS 20 Share-based
payments Under the standard the matching shares qualify

as equity-settled share-based payments to be recogmised ai
fair value at the date of grant Effectively the fair value of a
matching share 1s the cost of the partnership share The cost of
the share-based payments must be spread over the period unnl
the shares are owned by the employee (the vesting period) The
vesting perted for the matching shares 1s four years This has
resulted m a current year charge of £0 2m (2011 - £0 2m)

COMPANY PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

In accordance with Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006,
a separate Profit and Loss Account has not been pubhished fo
the Company
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In these noles to the financial stalements, the headings ‘2012 refer to the year ended 31st January 2012 or the balance sheet
as al 31st January 2012 and the headings ‘2011 refer to the year ended 31st January 2011 or the balance sheet as at

31st January 2011

1 Analysis of turnover, profit and capnal employed

The turnover and profits of the Croup dertve from 1ts acuvitics 1n the shoe irade

a) Analysis of profit/{loss) by geographical area of ongin

Profit he flore Profit hefor Profil before Profit before
exceptional Ekxceptional terest and exeeplional Exceptienal interest and
lems itcms taxation tems items taxation
2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011
£m £m £m £m £m £m
UK 78.1 0.2 78.3 784 51 835
North Amernica 279 - 27.9 287 - 287
Europe 3.2 - 3.2 (0 3) - (03)
Rest of the World 6.6 - 6.6 41 - 41
Group 115.8 0.2 116.0 1109 51 116 0
Share of Joint Venture
Rest of the World (0.5) - (0.5) {01) — (01)
115.3 0.2 X15.5 110 8 51 1159
b} Analysis of turnover and capital employed
Turnover by Turnever by Turnover by Capitul Caputal
Turgover by geographical ulumate ultimate employed by employed by
gLographical arcaof  peographucal  geographical  geogruplucal  geographical
arca of omgin origin market market arca arca
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m £fm &m
UK 758 8 708 3 601.3 582 3 305.6 2810
North America 524.5 4753 536.5 481 3 188.7 142 2
Europe 66.6 61 5 161.8 148 4 16.7 153
Rest of the World 48.2 362 98.5 693 8.5 42
Totzal footwear 1,398.1 1,281 3 1,398.1 1,281 3 519.5 4427
Unallocated items - - - - (1.3) (34)
Group 1,398.1 1,281 3 1,398 1 1,281 3 518 2 439 3
Share of Joint Venture
Rest of the World 1.6 - 1.6 - 1.4 -
1,399.7 1,281 3 1,399.7 1,281 3 519.6 439 3
) Reconciliation of capital employed and net assets
2012 2011
£m £m
Capital employed — (see note 1(b)) 519.6 439 3
Net cash — (see note 25) (9.5) 186
Deferred taxation — (see note 16) (6.6) (2 8)
Pension Lalihity - (see note 21) (79.3) (88 2)
Net assets 424.2 3669




2, Operaung profit and rosts

a) Costs less other iIncome

Before Before
cexcepuonal Exceptional excepional F xceptionul
1tems items ‘lotal ems items lotal
2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Turnover 1,398.1 - 1,3981 1,281 3 - 1,281 3
Cost of sales (736.2) - (736.2) (641 4) - (641 4)
Gross profit 661.9 - 661.9 6399 - 6399
Disteibution costs (346.8) - (346.8) (321 9) - (3219)
Admmistrative costs (199.3) - (199 3) (207 1) - (207 1)
Operating proiit 115.8 - 115 8 1169 - 1109
Admimstrative expenses mclude the cost of long-term incentive schemes as follows
2012 2011
£m £m
Long-term Incentive Plan 2.2 50
Clarks Compamies North America Incentive Plan 4.1 115
6.3 16 5
These schemes are detailed 1n the Remuneration Report on pages 32 to 35
b) Uther costs charged in arriving at operaung profit include
2012 2011
£m £m
Depreciation and impairments of owned assets 27.9 278
Auditor’s remuneration
Audnt of these financial statements 0.5 05
Amounts receivable by auditors 1n respect of
Other services relating to taxation 0.1 02
Other services 0.1 01
Operating lease rentals
Land and buildings 90.6 891
Plant and equipment 1.9 18
Operating lease rental income
Land and buildings (3.9) 52)
Share-based payment
Equity-settled 0.2 02

Parent Company audit fees were paid by a subsidhary undertaking 1n both years
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
confinued

2, Operaung profil and costs continued

¢) Average number of full-ime and parti-ime employees

2012 2011
Number Number
Sales and distribution 12,826 12,405
Administration 1,563 1,307
14,389 13,712
The average number of employees has been caleulated on a monthly weighted average The total number of employees at the
year end was 14,572 (2011 — 14,520)
d) Employment costs 1n respect of the foregoing
2012 2011
£m £m
Wages and salaries 205 3 1973
Social security costs 25.8 220
Pension current service cost — defined henefit scheme (see note 21) 10.5 96
Pension contributions = defined contnibution scheme (see note 21) 1.2 13
Long-term incentive schemes — (see note 2(a)) 6.3 165
249.1 246 7
e} Aggregale emoluments of the Directors
2012 2011
£m £m
Non-Executive Directors’ fees and benefits 0.3 04
kxecutive Directors’ services
Salanes and benefits 1.9 45
Long-term incentives 0.6 56
28 105
Pension contributions — money purchase pension schemes - o1
2.8 106
More detailed mformation concerning Directors’ share entitlements and emoluments, including long-term incentive schemes,
18 shown in the Remuneration Report on pages 32 to 35
f) Share of Operaling Loss m Joint Venture
2012 2011
£m £m
Share of Operating Loss in Joint Venture, Clarks Future Footwear Lamited (0.5) (01)
(0.5) (01}

Share of Operating Loss 1n the Joint Venture represents 50% of the results of Clarks Future Footwear Limited
Clarks Future Footwear Limied began trading in Apnl 2011




o
=

3. Exceptional items

a) Profit on disposal of fixed assets

2012 2011

£m £m
Property disposals surplus over net book value 0.2 39
b) Profit on disposal of land held for resale

2012 2011

£m £m
Disposal profit on sale of Houndwood land - 12
4. Other net finance costs

2012 2011

£m £m
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts 2.2 10
Interest receivable (0 3) (04)
Net interest cost on assets and habilities of pension scheme (see note 21) 7.5 66
Group 9.4 72
Joint Venture - -

9.4 72
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

5. Taxauion on profit on ordinary activities

a) Analysis of charge in the year

2012 2011
£m £m
Current taxation
UK 1axaton
UK cerporation tax at 26 3% (2011 — 28 0%) 15.5 153
Adjustments n respect of prior years {0.6) 01
Total UK taxation 14..9 154
Overseas taxation
Current taxation on mcome for the year 6.7 139
Adjustments 1n respect of prior years - 01
Jomm Venture - —
Tolal overseas taxation 6.7 140
Tax credit on pension contributions recogmsed in reserves 3.7 77
Total current taxanion 25.3 371
Movemeni 1n deferred taxation
Effective change in tax rate (0.5) —
Other ongination and reversal of timing differences (see note 16) 3.8 (55)
Total deferred taxation 3.3 (55)
Taxation on profilt on ordinary activities 28.6 3l6

b Factors affecting tax charge

The taxation assessed for the year 1s lngher than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK whichis 26 3% (2011 - 28 0%)

The differences are explained below

2012 2011

£m £m

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 106.1 1087
At standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 279 304
Higher taxahion rates on overseas earnings 2.8 22
Depreciation on 1tems not qualifying for capital allowances 0.7 07
Profit on disposal of assets not qualifying for capital allowances - 02
Oherseas taxation losses (1.9) (09)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 0.1 03
Other {1.0) (13)
28.6 3l6

Movement in deferred taxation (3.3) 55
Total current taxation {see note 5 (a)) 25.3 371




6. Ihvidends paid

zo12 2011
£m £m

Equity dividends paid in the year
Spewial ordinary share dividend for the year ended 31st January 2010 of 10 0p - 59
Final ordinary share dividend for the year ended 31st January 2011 of 26 5p (2010 — 20 Op) 15.7 119
Interim ordinary share dividend for the year ended 31st January 2012 of 10 Op (2011 - 10 Op) 6.0 60
21.7 238

The final ordinary share dividend proposed for the year ended 315t January 201215 27 5p per share (2011 — 26 5p)

7. Earmings per ordinary share

Baxic earmngs per ordinary share have been calculated by dividing the profit after taxation of £77 5m (2011 — £77 Lm) by the

weighted average number of ordmary shares m 1ssue during the year of 59,406,093 (2011 — 59,462,198)

8 Fixed assets — Intangible assets

Trademark Total
£m £m

Cost or valuation
At 1st February 2011 06 06
Captal expenditure - -
Disposals - -
At 31st Janmary 2012 06 0.6
Amortisation
At 1st February 2011 01 01
Charge for the year - -
Disposals — —
At 31st January 2012 o1 0.1
Net book value
At 31st January 2012 0.5 0.5
At 1st February 2011 05 05

The trademark relates to the Clarks brand name 1n Brazil
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued

9. Fixed assets — Tangible assets

a) Summary

Land Land Land
and buildings  and bwldings  and buildings Plaat and
Freehold  Lung lenschold Short leasehold eyquipment lotal
£m £m £m £m £m
Cost or valuation
At 1st February 2011 627 08 42 8 2811 3874
Exchange rate adjustments - - 04 08 12
Capial expenditure 88 - 50 470 608
Dhsposals {10) - (18) (76) (10 4)
At 31st January 2012 70.5 0.8 46.4 321.3 439.0
Depreciation
At Ist February 2011 73 01 217 1616 190 7
Exchange rate adjusiments - - 02 05 07
Charge for the year 11 - 42 226 279
Impairment - - — - —
Disposals {03) - (14) (63) (8 0}
At 31st Jannary 2012 8.1 0.1 24.7 178.4. 211.3
Net book value
At 31st January 2012 62.4 0.7 21.7 142.9 227.7
At 1st February 2011 554 07 211 1195 1967
b} Valuation of land and buildings
Feeehold Loag loasehold  Short lcasehold Total
£m £m £m £m
Land and buildings are stated at
Valuation less depreciation 26 07 - 33
Cost less depreciation 524 - 217 741
Net book value 55 0 07 21.7 77.4
At historical cost, the comparable amounts would be
Cost 70 4 06 46 4 117 4
Depreciation 86) (o1 (247) (33 4)
Net book value 6138 0.5 21.7 384.0

In accordance with the transitional provisions of FRS 15, freehold and long leasehold iand and buildings are shown at valuation
on adoption of FRS 15 and will not be updated The gross book value of freehold land and buildings includes £20 3m (2011 —

£20 6m) of land which 1s not depreciated

c) Leased assets
Plant and equipment includes leased assets with a net book value of £ml (2011 ~ £mil)




10. Faixed assets — Investments

a) Group
Listed Unblisted
myestments ilovestments Total
£m £m £fm
Net book values at 1st February 2011 28 01 29
Exchange rate adjustments - - -
Additions — - -
Disposals (10) - (10)
Net book values at 31st January 2012 1.8 0.1 1.9
h) Company
Sharcs in Shares in
subsidinry subsidiary
undurtakings undertakings
2012 2001
£m £m
Net book values at 1st February 2011 78.3 780
Additon/increase 1n net assets 0.2 03
Disposals - -
Net book values at 31st January 2012 78.5 783
11 Srock
2012 2011
£m £m
Fimished goods and goods held for resale 353.0 3235
353.0 3235




GO

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

continued
12. Debtors
Group Group Company Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Trade debtors 118.1 121 4 2.2 14
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - - 330.7 2419
Amounts owed by Joint Venture undertakings 0.8 04 - -
Other debtors 1.7 11 - —
Prepayments and acerued income 309 261 - -
Amounts falling due within one year 151.5 1490 3329 243 3
Trade debiors falling due afier more than one year 01 01 - —
Other debtors falling due after more than one year 06 04 - -
Amounts falling due afier more than one year 0.7 05 - -
152.2 1495 3329 243 3
13. Creditors — amounis falling due within one year
Group Group Company Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £
Bank loans and overdrafis 47.9 556 - 100
Trade creditors 117.0 1191 - -
Amounts owed 1o other Group undertakings ~ — 245.2 2110
Current taxation 39 74 - -
Social security 3.8 35 - -
Other creditors 14.8 14 2 - -
Accruals and deferred income 44.5 515 0.3 -
2319 251 3 245.5 2210
14.. Creditors — amounts falling due after more than one year
Group Group Company Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Long-term loans 70.5 316 70.5 316
Other creditors 12.6 124 - -
83.1 44 0 70.5 3le
Amounts falling due between
one and two years - - - -
two and five years 80.4 405 70.5 316
after five years 2.9 35 - -
83.1 44 9 70 5 316
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15, Provisions for llabihties

M 1st kebriary F xchange rae Provided A1 31s1 Fanuary
2011 adustment n year Unhsed 2012
£m £m £m Em £m
Long-term Incentive Plan 114 - 19 (4 9) 8.4
Clarks Compames North America Incentive Plan 126 02 42 (64) 10.6
Dilapidation provision 08 - 05 (0 4) 09
Onerous lease provision 05 — - (03) 0.2
Other 06 - - (02) 0.4
259 02 66 (12 2) 20.5
Deferred taxation (see note 16) 28 38 - 6.6
287 02 10 4 (12 2} 27.1
16. Deferred taxauon
Group Group
2012 2011
£m £m
Accelerated capital allowances 12.2 10 4
Holdover rehief 0.1 -
Liquidation of L1FO inventory reserves in North America and Japan 3.9 4.6
Overseas trading losses (0.9) -
Short-term timing differences (8.7) (12 2)
6.6 28
Group
£m
Provision at 1st February 2011 2.8
Exchange rate adjustment -
Deferred taxation charge 1n the profit and loss account for the year (see note 5(a)) 3.8
Provision at 31st January 2012 6.6
Deferred tax assets of £12 2m (2011 — £12 9m) have not been provided for on the basis that the Directors do not assess them
as being recoverable 1n the foresecable future The main component of the deferred tax asset 1s unutilised German losses
17. Share capital
Issued and Issued and
fully pard fully paid
2012 2011
£m £m
Ordinary shares of £1 each 59.4 594

Durtng the year 67,000 ordinary shares of £1 each were 1ssued for a consideration of £0 5m These shares were settled 1n cash
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
continued

18. Reserves

Shar Capital Profit Prafit

premium redemiption Merger and loss and loss

nccount Group &  reserve Group reserve aceount account

Company & Company Group Group Company

£m £m £m £m £m

At 31sl January 2011 04 181 151 2739 220
Currency translation adjusiments (net of corporation tax) — - - 22 -
Allotment of shares 04 - - - -
Profit for the year - - - 775 497
Actuarnial loss on pension scheme - - - (0 3) -
Associated deferred tax on actuarnal loss - - — 16 -
Effect of change m tax rate on deferred tax asset in pension habilty - - - (26) -
Share-based payment - - - 02 02
Dividends paid - - - (217) 217)
At 31st January 2012 0.8 18.1 15.1 330.8 50.2

The merger reserve of £15 1m (2011 - £15 1m) anses from the adoption of merger accounting in the year ended 31st January 1998
in relation to the Group recenstruction which followed the demerger of the Factory Outlet Centres The capital redemption reserve
was origally created 1in 2003 as a result of the ordinary share buy back

The profit for the year dealt within the profit and loss account of the Company amounts to £49 7m (2011 — £35 5m) The cumulative
total of goodwill written off against Group profit and loss account reserves 1n respect of acquisitions prior to the 1st February 1988,
when FRS 10 ‘Goodwill and Intangible Assels’ was adopted, amounts to £2 Im (2011 — £2 Im) Ths relates to acquisttions since
1st February 1985 as information prior 1o this date 1s not available

19. Financial commitments

Commitments by the Group for capital expenditure not provided in the financial statements are

2012 2011

£m £m

Contracled but not provided for 61.0 68
Annual commitments by the Group i respect of non-cancellable operating leases are

Lond I and Plant Plant

and buildings and buldings and equipment and cquipment

2012 2011 2012 2011

£m fm £m Lm

Expiring within one year 5.5 77 0.2 ¢1

Expiring between two and five years 309 301 1.2 10

Expiring after five years 49.5 46 8 - -

85.9 84 6 1.4 11
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20. Financial instruments and risk management

The Group’s treasury management policies are outhined 1n the Financial Review on page 19

a) Currency profile and interest rales

Gross  Cash at bank et (cash) Gross Cash at bank Net (cash)
borrowings and 10 hand /borrowings borrowings and 1 hand fboerowings
2012 2012 2012 2011 2011 2011
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Currency:
Sterling 0.3 (64.9) (64.6) 102 (820) (71 8)
US dollar 111 (27.2) (16.1) 16 3 (8 3) 80
Euro 29.5 (6.7) 22.8 205 {(57) 148
Other 7.0 (10.1) (3.1) 86 (98) (12)
47.9 (108.9) (61.0) 5356 (105 8) (50 2)
Borrowings for hedging purposes
Sterhing 5.4 - 51.4 - - -
US Dollar 19.1 - 19.1 316 - 316
705 - 70.5 316 - 316
118.4 (108.9) 95 872 (105 8) (18 6)

The Group’s cash deposits comprise deposits placed on money markets ut call and overnight rates The Group’s entire net

borrowing facilities amounting to £235 3m (2011 — £171 1m) are available at floating rates These include the Revolving Credit
Facility of £200 Om (2011 - £136 5m) and overdraft fachines 1n the UK and overseas totalling £35 3m (2011 — £34 6m) Under
the Revolving Credit Facility interest rates are based upon LIBOR, fixed depending on the tenor of the loan The interest rates
on overdraft facilities in the UK are based on the UK base rate for sterling borrowings and the relevant LIBOR rate for currency
borrowings ‘L he mterest rates on short-term facilities in the USA and Japan are based on local base rates Bank borrowings are

secured by a floaing charge over the assets of the Group

Included 1n sterhng borrowings for hedging purposes 1s £31 4m boriowed at floating rates, which by the use of 4 cross-currency
interest rate swap has created a synthetic US dollar fixed interest hability of $80m The sterling asset and US dollar hability
created by this swap have been disclosed net 1n both Group and Company accounts due to a legal night of set off

Exchange losses on foreign currency borrowings less deposits were £0 2m (2011 —loss £1 8m) including a gain of £ml (2011 — £mil)
relating to exchange movements on loans providing a hedge to offset currency movements arising on retranslation of overseas subsidianes

The matunty of the Group’s gross borrowings at 31st January was as follows

2012 2011
£m £m
In one year or less or on demand 47.9 556
In more than one year bul not more than two years - 316
In more than two yedrs but not more than five years 70.5 -
118.4 872

At 31st January the Group had the following undrawn net committed borrowings faciliies available
2012 2011
£m Em
Expiring 1n one year 33.7 346
Expiring in more than one year but not more than two years 129.5 949
163.2 1295
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

contined

20. Financial instruments and risk management continued

b) Currency exposures, fair values and hedge
The Group has used foreign currency cantracts to cover the currency exposures on cash flows up to twa years forward

The Group does not engage i foreign currency speculation but covers its future trading requirements through forward exchange
contracts and options By necessity, this results in some forward currency commitments at the year end which have been entered
mto at exchange rates likely to be relevant at the contract date Due 1o short-term fluctuaitons in exchange rates, the year end rates
will always be different from contract rates

As at 31st January 2012, the foreign currency forward contracis held a theoretical fair value gain of £6 3m (2011 — loss £0 4m)
The fair value gain on options at 31st January 2012 was £5 1m (2011 — loss £0 2m) One hundred and fifty-seven of the one
hundred and seventy-four contracts held will mature during the year ended 31st January 2013 The slerling value of the deals
held 1s £692 9m (2011 — £650 2m) Ninety-five of the one hundred and twenty-six contracts held at 31st January 2011 have
matured and have been recognised 1n the profit and loss account

The fair value loss for the Group and Company on the cross-currency nterest rate swap used to create the synthetic loan
at 31 January 2012 was £0 9m

21. Reurement Benefits

The Group operates two defined benefit schemes 11 the UK, the C&J Clark Pension Fund (the Fund) and the Claiks Flexible
Pension Scheme (the Scheme) A full actuarial valuation of the Fund was carried out at 5 April 20F]1 and an actuanal report of the
Scheme was carned out at 5 Apnl 2009 These were updated 1o 31st January 2012 by a qualified independent actuary The Group
operates 4 single defined benelit scheme 1n the USA the C&J Clark Company Pension Plan (the Plan) A full actuanal valuation
of the Plan was carried out at 1st January 2011 and updated to 31st January 2012 by a qualified independent actuary

Group Graup
2012 2011
£m £m

Change 1n benefit obligation for defined benefit sections

Benefit obligation at the beginming of the year 827.3 770 5

Current service cost 10.5 96

Interest cost 45.9 43 B

Plan participants’ contributions 0.3 04

Past service costs - -

Actuarial gans 65.9 42 3

Transfer from defined coninbution section of the Fund - -

Cuntailments - -

Benefits paid (40.3) (396)
Exchange rate adjustment on US scheme 0.6 03
Benchit obligation at the end of the year 910.2 8273

Analysis of benefit obliganon for defined benefit sections
Plans that are wholly or partly funded 909.9 8270

Plans that are wholly unfunded 0.3 03

Total 910.2 8273




21. Reurement Benefits continued

Group Group
2012 2011
£m £m
Change 1 plan assets for defined benefit sections
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 704.2 628 4
Expected return on plan assets 38.4 371
Actuanal gains 65.6 350
Transfer from defined contribution section of the Fund - -
Employer contribution 31 2 42 8
Member contnibutions 0.3 04
Benefits pard (40.3) (39 6)
Exchange rate adjustment on US scheme 0.7 01
Fair value of plan assets al the end of the year 800.1 704 2
Funded status (110.1) (123 1)
Unrecogmsed past service cost (henefit) - -
Net amount recogmsed (110.1) (123 1)

In addition, the value of the assets and habilities held in the defined contribution section of the UK Fund amounted to £21 8m
as at 31st January 2012 (2011 — £21 8m) and the value of assets and habilities held 1n the defined contribution section of the
UK Scheme amounted to £4 6m as al 31st January 2012 (2011 — £3 5m) Defined contribution schemes 1n the US held assets

of £29 8m as at 31st January 2012 (2011 — £27 Om)

Group Group
2012 2011
£m £m

Components of pension cost
Current service cost — defined benefit scheme 10.5 96
Contribution — defined contnbution scheme 12 13
Interest cost 45.9 43 8
kxpected return on plan assets (38.4) (371)
Past service cost - -
Effect of curtailments - -
Total pension cost 1ecogmised i the Profit and Loss Account 19.2 176
Actuarial losses immediately recogmsed 0.3 73
Total pension cost recogmsed 1 the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses 0.3 73
Cumulative amount of actuanal losses immediately recogmsed since 1 February 2005 73.0 727




60

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
continued

21. Retirement Benefits continued

Group Group
2012 2011
£m £m

Movement in defieil during the year
Deficit in the scheme at the beginning of the year {123.1) (142 1)
Current service cost (10.5) (96)
Contributions 31.2 42 8
Past service costs/curtailments - -~
Net (interest cost)/return on assets (7.5) (6 6)
Actuarial loss (0.3) (72)
Exchange rate adjustment on US scheme 0.1 (04)
Doficn i the schome at the end of the year (110.1) (123 1)
Assocrated deferred tax asset
Deferred tax asset at the beginming of the year 34.9 419
Deferred tax charge on penston contributions 1n excess of current year pension charge (3.7) 77
Effective change 1n tax rate {2.0) 1n
Movements on actuanal loss 1.6 17
Exchange rate adjustment on US scheme - 01
Deferred tax asset at the end of the year 30.8 349
Nel pension habihity at the beginming of the year (88.2) (100 2)
Net pension liability at the end of the year (79.3) (88 2}

Plan assets
The weighted average asset allocations at the year end were as follows

UK UK North Amuricu North Amernica
plun tuwaty plin assets plen nesets plan nssels
2012 2011 2012 2011
Asset category

Equities 39.27% 3939% 41.30% 65 32%
Bonds 59.96% 59 88% 58.70% 34 68%
Cash 0.77% 073% - -
100.00% 10000% 100.00% 100 00%

Amounts 1ncluded in the fair value of assets for:
Financial instruments - - - -
Property occupied or other assets used - - - -

To develop the expecied long-term rate of return on assets assumption, the Group considered the eurrent level of expected returns
on risk free investments (primanly government bonds), the historical level of the risk premium associated with the other asset
classes 1 which the portfolio 15 invested, the expectation for future returns of each asset class and the expected expenses of

operating the schemes The expecied return for each asset class was then weighted hased on the targel asset allocation to develop
the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption for the portfolio This resulied in the selection of the 4 42% assumption

for the year ended 31 January 2012 for the UK scheme and 7 009 for the US scheme
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21. Retirement Benefits continued

Group Group

2012 2011

£m £m

Actual return on plan assets 104..0 722

UK UK North Amerien North America
2012 2011 2012 2011
Weighted average assumphons used 10 determine benefit obhgations
Discount rate 4.70% 560% 4.50% 5 50%
Rate of inciease 1n salaries Semor Executives 5.10% 550% 4.00% 500%
Others 4.60% 500% 4.00% 500%
Rate of increase in pensions m payment  Fund 3.10% 340% n/a n/a
Scheme 2.00% 225% n/a nfa
Rate of increase in pensions in deferment 2.10% 300% n/a n/a
Inflation assumption 3.10% 3 50% 2.50% 2 50%
Weighted average asssmnptions used to determine net pension cost
for the year end
Discount rate 5.60% 5 75% 5.75% 6 00%
Expected long-term return on plan assels 4.42% 567% 7.00% 8 50%
Rate of 1nerease in salaries Senior Executives 5.50% 5 50% 5.00% 500%
Others 5.00% 5 00% 5.00% 500%
Rate of increase 1n pensions in payment  Fund 3.40% 340% n/a n/a
Scheme 2.25% 225% nfa nfa
Rate of increase 1n pensions 1n deferment 3.00% 340% n/a n/a
Inflation assumption 3.10% 3 50% 2.50% 2 50%
Weighted average life expectancy for mortality tables used
to determuine henefit obligations
Member age 65 (current life expectancy) Male 22.9 203 19.6 179
Female 23.5 232 21.3 213
Member age 45 (Iife expectancy at age 65) Male 24.7 213 19.6 179
Female 25.0 241 21.3 213
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21. Retirement Benefits continued

Five year history

UK Uk Uk Uk UK

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

£m £m £m £m £m

Benefit obligation at the end of the year (822.6) (761 0) (710 0) (6179) (658 9)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 738 8 654 9 5900 482 9 582 0
Deficit in the scheme (83.8) (106 1) (1200) {135 0) (769
Related deferred tax asset 21.0 286 336 378 215
Net pension hability (62 8) (775) (86 4) (97 2) (554)

horth America

North America

North Amirica

North Amcenca

Nortk Amerw a

2012 2011 2019 2009 2008

£m £m £m £m E£m
Benefit obligation at the end of the year (87.6) (66 3) (60 5) (567) (400)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 61.3 49 3 384 289 321
Deficit in the scheme (26.3) (170) 22 1) (278) (79
Related deferred tax asset 9.8 63 83 108 31
Net pension habality (16.5) (10 7) (13 8) 17 0) 4 8)
GLroup Group Group Lroup Croup

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

£m £m £m £m £m
Benefit obligation at the end of the year (910.2) (827 3) (770 9) (674 6) (698 9)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 800.1 704 2 628 4 5118 6141
Deficut 1n the scheme (110.1) (123 1) (1421) (162 8) (84 8)
Related deferred tax asset 30.8 349 419 48 6 246
Nel pension habiliny (79.3) (88 2) (100 2) {114 2) (60 2)
Actual return less expected return on scheme assets 65.6 350 (131 0} (131 0) (20 4)
Percentage of year end scheme assets 8.2% 50% (20 8%) (25 6%) (3 3%)
Experience (losses)/guins ansing on scheme habilities (65.9) (42 3) 55 55 49)
Percentage of year end scheme hiabilities (7.2%) {51%) 07% 08% (07%)

Contributions

Under the current schedule of contnbutions, the Group expects to make contributions towards pension deficits of £17m 1o the
UK schemes and $10m 1o the US schemes in the year ended 31 January 2013

22. Related party transactions

Control

The Group holding company 1s C&)J Clark Limited As indicated in the Corporate Governance statement on pages 22 to 24,
farmly members hold 84 2% of the Company’s ordinary shares

Transactions with directors and officers

There were no transactions with directors and officers during the year
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22. Related party transactions continued

Transactions with subsidiares

The Group has taken advantage of the exemptions in FRS 8 ‘Related Party Transactions’ in respect of transactions with wholly owned
subsidiaries Therefore, Iransactions belween the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been ehiminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed 1n this note Transactions between the Group and its joint venture are disclosed below

Sales to Salestoc  Amounts owed  Amounts owed Injection Injection
related related by related by related of equity of equity
partics parlies parties parties Tunding funding

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Joint Venture 2.2 04 0.8 04 1.7 03

Sales to related parties consist of footwear

23. Reconcihation of operating profit items to operating cash flows

2012 2011

£m £m
Operating profit before exceptional items 115.8 1109
Depreciation and impairments 27.9 279
Decrease n land held for resale - 13
Increase 1n stocks (27.2) (89 0)
Increase 1n debtors (6.1) (17 8)
(Decrease)/increase n creditors (15.8) 341
(Decrease)/increase 1n provistons {3.6) 20
Exchange gains on currency bank accounts (0.2) (18)
Loss on sale of tangible fixed assets - 47
Pension defioit funding (22.4) (34 5)
Dhfference between pension charge and cash contributions 1.6 25
Net cash inflow from operating activities 68.0 403
24. Analysis of cash flows for headings netted in the Group cash flow statement

2012 2011

£m £m
a) Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received 0.3 04
Interest paid 1.7) (08)
Net cash outflow for returns on investments and servicing of finance (1.4) (04}
h) Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (54..3) (42 5)
Sale of tangible fixed assets 6.8 19
Additions to 1nvestments (see note 10a) - (05)
Disposal of investments (see note 10a) 1.0 —
Investment in joint venture undertaking (1.7) (0 3)

Net cash outflow for capital expenditure and financial investment (48.2) (41 4)
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24. Analysis of cash flows for headings netted 1n the Group cash flow statement continued

2012 2011
£m £m
¢) Financing
Inerease in long-term bank loans 38.9 316
(Decrease)increase m bank loans (10.9) 100
Increase 1n debt 28.9 416
Issue of shares 0.4 -
Share buyback - (16)
Net cash inflow from financing 29.3 400
25 Anazlysis of net cash
At 1st February [ranslation At 31st January
2011 Cash flow dffercnces 2012
Em £m £m £m
Cash at bank and i hand 105 8 33 (02) 108.9
Bank overdrafts (45 6) 27 04 (47.9)
60 2 06 02 61.0
Bank loans (10 0) 100 - -
Long-term loans (31 6) (389) - (70.5)
186 (28 3) 02 (9.5)
C&J CLARK LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES
The following subsidiaries arc those contnibuling most sigmificantly to the prolits and the assels of the Group and 1s not
a complete lst of all subsidiaries All are wholly-owned and are engaged 1n the shoe trade
. Country of Ordinary
neorporation sharcs %
Subsidiaries
C&) Clark International Linnied {trading as Clarks International) England £ each 100
Clarks Compames North America USA US$each 100
Clarks Shoes Vertriebs GmbH Germany € each 100
Clarks Shoes Benelux BV Holland € each 100
Clarks Japan Company Limited Japan ¥ each 100

Jomt Ventures
Clarks Future Footwear Limited India RUP each

50




GROUP FINANCIAL RECORD

71

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
{restated)
Notes £m £m £m £m £m
Group trading resulis for the year
ended 31st January
Total Group turnover 1,398 1 1,281 3 1,173 5 1,122 0 1,053 0
‘lurnover from continuing activities 1 1,399.7 1,281 3 1,173 5 11220 1,635 6
Profit before interest, exceplional wtems and Joint Venture 115.8 1109 974 933 852
Exceptional tems before taxation 0.2 51 15 05 (6 0)
Profit before interest and after exceptional items 115.5 1159 989 938 792
Net interest 94) (72) (13 8) (70) @1)
Profit before tax and after exceptional items 106.1 1087 851 868 751
Profit afier tax 77.5 771 608 620 517
Group financial position at 31st January
Capital employed 518.2 4393 3531 443 5 360 1
Net borrowings/(cash) 9.5 (18 6) (77 4) 295 191
Equaty shareholders’ funds 424.2 3669 3225 2885 269 2
Ratios
Return on sales 2 8.3% 8 7% 83% 8 3% 82%
Return on capital employed 3 22.3% 252% 27 6% 21 0% 23 7%
Net assets per ordinary share 4 £7.14 £616 £541 £4 79 £443
Net borrowings/equity 2 2% (51%) (24 09%) 10 2% 71%
Basic earnings per ordinary share 5 130.5p 129 6p 101 6p 102 ¢p 84 7p
Basic earmngp per ordinary share before exceptional stems 130.2p 121 1p 98 3p 101 8p 93 2p
Dividends pad during the year per ordinary share 6 36.5p 40 Op 275p 26 5p 24 Op
Dnidend cover 7 3.6 32 37 39 35
Interest cover 8 12 3 161 72 134 193

1 Turnover from contimuing operations n all years excludes the turnover generated by the Elefanten group of companies and Ravel
2 Return on sales 1s the profit hefore interest and exceptional tems expressed as a percentage of turnover from

continung activities

3 Return on eapnal employed 1s the profit before interest and exceptional 1tems expressed as a percentage of capital employed

at the year end

4 Net assets per ordinary share s the amount of the equuty shareholders’ funds divided by the number of ordinary shares 1n 1ssue

5 Basic earmings per ordinary share have been caleulated as per note 7 1in the notes to the financial statements

6 Dhwvidends paid during the year per ordinary share reflect the actual payments made during the year rather than the
dividend declared in respect of the year in accordance with FRS 21 ‘Events after the Balance Sheet date’
7 Dwidend cover 1s profit after tax divided by dividends pad

8 Interest cover 1s the profit before interest divided by net interest




FACTS AT YOUR FINGERTIPS

2012
Rest of

UK America Europe the World Group
Turnover (£mmllions) 601 536 162 99 1,398
Employees (number at year end)* 11,906 2,338 132 196 14,572
Pairs sold (millions) 28.9 200 2.3 1.0 52.2
Shops
Clarks 378 149 4 - 531
Concessions 58 - - - 58
Factory shopping outlets 37 100 4. - 141
Bostoman - 17 - - 17
Total owned shops 473 266 8 - 747
Franchise stores 111 - - - 111
International Clarks shops** - 7 163 128 2938
Total shops 584 273 171 128 1,156
2011

Rest of

UK America Europe the World Group
Turnover (£millions) 582 481 148 69 1,281
Employees (number at year end)* 12,121 2,135 91 173 14,520
Pairs sold (millions) 282 18 5 18 c8 493
Shops
Clarks 383 137 1 - 521
Concessions 56 - - - 56
Factory shopping outlets 37 93 3 - 133
Bostoman - 24 - - 24
Total owned shops 476 254 4 - 734
Franchise stores 112 - - - 112
International Clarks shops** - 6 131 94 231
Total shops 588 260 135 94 1,077

* Including part time employees

** Monobranded partnership stores using ihe ‘global’ shopfit format

This report was printed on paper which 1s made of 50% recycled matenals and 509% from

sustainable sources
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